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December 21, 2017

Letter of Transmittal M
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Eagle Mountain City (the City), for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017 is submitted herewith. As a third class city, Eagle Mountain is given reasonable exceptions and
modifications to accounting, budgetary, and reporting procedures as stated by Utah State law. The law for first,
second, and third class cities is to “present to the governing body an annual financial report prepared in confor-
mity with Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States (GAAP), as prescribed in the Uniform
Accounting Manual for Utah Cities.” This report, which fulfills the law for higher-class cities, presents a compre-
hensive financial picture covering all funds and financial transactions for the year.

This CAFR has been prepared by the City’s Finance and Management Departments. Responsibility for both the
accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures
and supplementary information, rests with the City’s management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups of the City. All disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the government’s financial activities have been included. Likewise,
the “Notes to the Financial Statements™ are an integral part of this report and should be read for a more complete
understanding of the financial statements and information presented in this report.

Management of the City is also responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed
to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting
data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The City’s internal
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.
The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits
likely to be derived and 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As required by Utah state law, an annual audit has been conducted by independent certified public accountants.
The Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants, as prepared by Gilbert & Stewart, CPA, A Professional
Corporation, is included within the Financial Section of this report. The independent audit involved examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statements presentation.

The independent auditor concluded, based on the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqual-
ified opinion that the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, are fairly presented in

conformity with GAAP.
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GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). The letter of transmittal
is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

Eagle Mountain City was incorporated in December 1996 and includes over 50 square miles or around 27,000
acres. The City is located approximately 10 miles West of the City of Lehi, Utah, 40 miles Southwest of Salt Lake
City, Utah, and 30 miles Northwest of Provo, Utah.

Since the 2000 U.S. Census, Eagle Mountain City has shown steady, and often rapid, growth. In twenty years,
the City has grown from 2,157 residents to about 35,000 in 2017. About 8,500 residential units have been built,
with an average of 486 permits per year over the past 5 years, making Eagle Mountain one of the fastest growing
communities in Utah and the state’s third largest city geographically.

Since the City was established it has operated under the council-mayor form of government. The City Council,
comprised of five elected individuals, is the governing authority for the City. The elected Mayor has various
administrative and veto powers. One of the Mayor’s administrative powers is the appointment of the City Ad-
ministrator, Cabinet Officers (Department Heads), and various other positions such as the City Treasurer, the City
Recorder, and the City Engineer.

The City Council establishes City policy, approves the budget, and ratifies the appointment of City Officials. The
City Council is authorized to issue bonds, incur short-term debt, levy property taxes, and is not dependent on any
other unit of local government.

The City provides the full range of municipal services normally associated with a municipality. In brief, the
general government functions include police protection, park construction and maintenance, street construction
and maintenance, public improvements, engineering, building inspection, planning and zoning, administrative
services, and park and recreation services. The City also operates water, solid waste, and sewer services as en-
terprise funds.

Comprehensive annual budgets are an essential element for the City’s financial planning and control. Therefore,
budgets are adopted annually (required by Utah state law) by the City Council for all funds except debt service
funds (which although budgeted, are used to account for special assessments and expendable trust funds and
therefore are subject to compensating controls).

Utah state law also requires: 1) a balanced budget for each individual fund; however, Redevelopment Agencies
are allowed to incur debt prior to the triggering of the tax increment revenue thus allowing an unbalanced budget,
2) department expenditures to conform with departmental appropriations, and 3) individual fund appropriations
to be overspent only in “emergencies” (natural disasters).

Once the budgets are approved, the City Council may revise the budgets from time to time after following the
required procedures. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual fund for which
an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.



Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from the
broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates.

Local Economy

Utah’s unemployment rate as of October 2017 was 3.3%, much lower than the national unemployment rate of
4.1%, with Utah County being tied for second for the lowest unemployment. During the last half of 2017, Utah’s
foreclosure rate stood at 0.3% which has improved significantly with the end of the recession.

Corresponding with Utah’s relative economic stability, Eagle Mountain grew by about 10.3% in 2017 (based on
new building permits). As these building permits were largely residential units, Eagle Mountain is and should
continue seeing an increase in building since the recession ended.

Despite the small commercial tax base, Eagle Mountain residents enjoy a tax rate that is in the bottom third of all
cities in Utah County. Eagle Mountain’s current property tax rate is 0.001011. The City has not gone through
the Truth-in-Taxation process (to raise the rate) since FY2005. The City has been able to manage services for
this quick-growing community without levying heavy taxes to balance the budget. Additional information about
economic factors can be found in the MD&A.

Long-Term Financial Planning

Per State law requirements, the City Council approved a balanced budget for the upcoming fiscal year. For the
fifth year in a row, this was a challenging task, as the City’s revenue streams continue to recover from the econom-
ic downturn. City officials sought to reduce expenditures while minimizing the impact on services to residents.

Despite the continued impact the economy is having on the City’s revenue streams, the FY2018 Budget includes
additional additions to the Cory B. Wride Memorial Park complex, infrastructure improvements to handle in-
creasing demands, continuing and new road paving projects throughout the city, and the purchase of a new scree
press installed at the sewer plant.

Relevant Financial Policies

Eagle Mountain City incorporates a pay-as-you-go strategy on projects that are financially feasible. Currently, the
City has no general obligation debt. However, as the City is so young, a pay-as-you-use strategy was implement-
ed in order to set up the infrastructure throughout the City. All of the City-owned utilities were financed through
revenue bonds. The City consistently monitors its long-term debt situation, and refunds or repays its bonds where
it is financially advantageous to the City.

Major Initiatives

As we prepare for the future, the Mayor is committed to 1) Improvement of Services; 2) Park Improvements; 3)
Improved Public Safety; 4) Improved Transportation; and 5) Emphasis on Economic Development. These initia-
tives are reflected in the fiscal year 2018 Budget.



Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for
the City’s annual budget document for fiscal years 2009 through 2016. In order to qualify for the Distinguished
Budget Presentation Award, the government’s budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories,
including as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device. This is the
eighth consecutive year that the City has received this esteemed award.

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) has also awarded the Certificate of Achievement in Fi-
nancial Reporting award to the City for the past seven fiscal years (2010 - 2016). In order to qualify for the Cer-
tificate of Achievement in Financial Reporting award, the City’s financial status must meet rigorous standards for
transparency and accuracy.

The preparation of the CAFR on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff of
the Finance and Management Department. Each member of these departments has our sincere appreciation for

the contributions made in the preparation of this report. In closing, without the leadership and support of the gov-
erning body of Eagle Mountain City, preparation of this report would not have been possible.

Respectfully Submitted,

- 27

Ifo Pili, Paul Jerome,
City Administrator Finance Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT



GILBERT & STEWART "l GiLgen. cpa
S CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS M exh ross. Goa
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION BRI
ESTABLISHED 1974 e
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Honorable Mayor and
Members of City Council

Eagle Mountain, Utah

Report on the Basic Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Eagle Mountain City, Utah (the
City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2017, the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information and the required supplementary information
regarding pensions, as noted in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplemental information, and the
statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The combining statements, budgetary comparisons, and capital assets, as listed as supplemental information in
the table of contents, are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and to certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the combining statements, budgetary comparisons, and capital assets
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied to the audit
of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 10, 2017,
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Gilbert & Stewart

GILBERT & STEWART, CPA, PC
Provo, Utah

December 10, 2017
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of Eagle Mountain City, we offer the readers of the financial statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of Eagle Mountain City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. We
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we
have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

Financial Highlights

e In the Government Wide Statement of Net Position, the total net position of $150,657,999 is made up of
$120,060,973 in net investment in capital assets, $5,239,686, in restricted net position, and $25,357,340
in unrestricted net position. Total net position increased by $18,845,631 from the prior year.

e As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $7,726,666. Of this amount, $2,463,417 must only be spent on projects for which the money
is restricted. $2,303,926 is assigned by the City administration and is divided as follows: $6,058 for storm
water projects, $280,237 for debt service, and $2,017,63 1for capital projects. The remaining $2,959,323
is unassigned in the general fund.

e In the enterprise (proprietary) funds, operating revenues increased by $570,348. Corresponding operating
expenses increased by $412,840. This change was due in part to the continued growth within the City.

Reporting the City as a Whole

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Eagle Mountain City’s basic financial
statements. Eagle Mountain City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) government-wide
financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
includes other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of Eagle
Mountain City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

e The statement of net position presents information on all of Eagle Mountain City’s assets and liabilities,
with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Eagle Mountain City is
improving or deteriorating. However, you will also need to consider other non-financial factors.

e The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the
fiscal year reported. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to
the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, all of the current year’s revenues
and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Eagle Mountain City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type

activities).

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 21 and 22 of this report.
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Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. Eagle Mountain City also uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

e Governmental funds — These funds are used to account for the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. These fund statements focus on how money flows
into and out of these funds and on the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds
are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and
other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps users determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s programs. We describe the relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement
of Activities

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-26 of this report.

The major governmental funds (as determined by generally accepted accounting principles) are the
general fund and certain debt service funds. The balance of the governmental funds are determined to be
nonmajor and are included in the combined statements within this report.

e Proprietary funds — Eagle Mountain City maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Eagle Mountain City uses enterprise funds to account for its water utility, sewer utility, gas
utility, electric utility, golf course, garbage, and business incubator.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 27-29 of this report.
e Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Internal Service Fund accounts for the fleet management, utility billing, and GIS services provided to
other departments of the government on a cost reimbursement basis.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the
case of Eagle Mountain City, assets and deferred outflows exceed liabilities and deferred inflows by $150,657,999.

One of the largest portions of Eagle Mountain City’s net position (80%) reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure assets, and machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

14



The following table summarizes the City’s net position. Comparative figures for Fiscal Years 2017 and 2016 are
shown below:

Governmental Activities Busmess-type Actrvities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Current and other assets $ 17614700 $ 11984644 $ 24611329 § 22899211 § 42226029 § 34883855
Capital Assets 78,185,120 67,734,966 65,476,387 61,241,698 143,661,507 128,976,664
Total assets 95,799,820 79,719,610 90,087,716 84,140,909 185,887,536 163,860,519
Deferred Outlflows of
Resources 728,191 634,159 1.158.226 1,241,905 1.886.417 1,876,064
Long-term debt outstanding 2,884,083 3,105,582 23,574,198 24,684,426 26,458,281 27,790,008
Other liabilities 7,145,732 2,941,214 1.820.707 1,717,843 8.966.439 4,659,057
Total liabilities 10,029,815 6.046.796 25,394,905 26,402,269 35,424,720 32,449,065
Deferred Inflows of
Resources 1.605.927 1395227 85.307 79923 1.691.234 1475150
Net position:
Net mvestment 1n capital assets, 76,834,279 66,092.722 43 226,694 38,007,144 120,060,973 104,099 866
Restricted 1.107.530 1.642.085 4132.156 2,992 801 5,239 686 4,634,886
Unrestricted 6,950 460 5,176,939 18.406.880 17.900.677 25,357,340 23,077,616
Total net assets $ 84802269 § 72911746 $ 65.765.730  § 58900622 $ 150657999 § 131,812 368

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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The following table summarizes the changes in net position:

Governmental Activities Busmess-type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for services § 4808084 § 4569333 $ 13254589 5 11472554 § 18152673 § 16.041.887
Operating grants & contnib. 24,429 52235 - - 24.429 52.235
Capital grants & contrib. 13,384,998 10,001,603 6.250.205 3.431.786 19.635.203 13.433.389
General revenues:
Property taxes 1,377,090 1,202,258 - - 1.377.090 1.202.258
General sales & use tax 3,139,809 2,751,058 - - 3,139,809 2,751,058
Franchise tax 1,224,569 1.110.170 - - 1.224.569 1.110.170
Interest earnings 204,058 82,267 - - 204.058 82267
Total revenues 24253037 19,768,924 19,504,794 14,904,340 43,757 831 34.673.264
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Expenses:
General government $ 3075688 § 3257255 $ - % - § 3075688 § 3257255
Public safety 2332378 2286418 - - 2,332.378 2286418
Highways & public works 7.506.410 6.496 475 - - 7.506.410 6.496.475
Community development 1,281,716 1,174,443 - - 1.281.716 1.174.443
Planning 508,154 380.673 - - 508,154 380.673
Interest on long-term debt 68,597 166,707 - - 68,597 166,707
Water utility - - 4.217.435 4,077.461 4.217.435 4.077.461
Sewer utility - - 4.004.069 3923954 4.004.069 3923954
Electric utility - - 61.235 95,183 61.235 95,183
Gas utility - - 61.731 79.069 61.731 79.069
Golf course - - - - -
Non-major business - - 1.310.495 1,148,040 1.310.495 1.148.040
Total expenses 14.772.942 13.761.971 9.654.965 0,323,707 24427907 23.085.678
Increase (decrease) in net assets
before transfers 9,480,095 6,006,953 0.849.829 5,580,633 19,329,924 11,587,586
Transfers 2684721 80,184 (2.684.721) (80.184) - -
Inecrease (decr.) in net assets 12.164.816 6,087,137 7.165.108 5.500.449 19,329,924 11.587.586
Net position - beginning 72,911,746 66,824 609 58.900,622 53,400,173 131.812.368 120224782
Restatement of net position (184 293) - (300,000} - (484 .293) -
Net position - ending $ 848922690 & 72011746 $ 65765730 § 58900622 § 150657999 § 131812368

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)



Governmental activities

Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $12,164,816. The increase is due mainly to strong
residential growth, which helped fuel the increase in revenues related to property taxes, sales taxes, and charges
for services, Also contributing to the increase in net position is the City’s commitment to conservative budgeting
in order to keep expenditures as low as possible despite the rapid growth.

Business-type activities

Business-type activities increased the City’s net position by $7,165,108. As of the end of the current fiscal year,
all of the City’s business-type funds reported positive net position.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
$7,726,666. Of this total amount, 40% constitutes assigned and unassigned fund balances. $2,303,926 is
assigned by the administration of the City and will be used for the following: $6,058 for storm water projects,
$280,237 for debt service, and $2,017,631 for capital projects. $2,959,323 is unassigned and is available for
spending at the government’s discretion.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund
balance of the general fund was $2,959,323, a decrease of $111,565 from fiscal year 2016. The total balance

is $2,959,323, a decrease of $111,565 from the prior year. A major reason for the change is a restatement of
the fund balance which reduced fund balance by $184,293 and an increase in the fund balance due to revenues
from taxes increased. The City has implemented measures to reduce the expenditures, which contributed to
the increase in fund balance. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents
31% of total general governmental fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 31% of that same
amount.

The City has two major Governmental Funds:

1. Special Improvement District 2000-1. The District was established originally to bond for certain
infrastructure improvements in the north service area of the City. The repayment of the bonds is from
annual assessments to the property owners within the district and from prepayments on the initial sale
of a property. The fund balance of SID 2000-1 at the end of the fiscal year is $608,687, an increase of
$354,263. The main reason for the increase in fund balance was additional impact fees received

2. General Capital Projects fund. The fund was created to account for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition and construction major capital facilities within the City. At the end of fiscal year 2017
the fund balance is $2,017,631 which is an increase of$2,017,598. This increase is from operating
transfers from the funds of the City in preparation for the construction of several projects.

The City maintains enterprise funds to account for the business-type activities of the City. The information is
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.
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Unrestricted net position of the combined enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $18,406,880. The
net investment in capital assets in these same funds is $43,226,694.

As mentioned in the financial highlights, operational revenues and expenditures in the enterprise funds increased
by $570,348 (42%) and $412,840 (50%), respectively.

The water and sewer Funds showed a net operating profit, After non-operating revenues/expenses, contributions,
and transfers are taken into account, the water, sewer, electric, and gas fund net position increased (or decreased)
by $6,622,373, $3,781,655, $(821,620), and $(2,191,532) respectively. The major reasons for the increase in net
position is an increase in impact fees collected and an increase in contributed capital from developers in the water
and sewer funds. The decreases in the electric and gas funds are due to transfers to the capital projects fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the fiscal year, the general fund’s original budget was amended from an original budget expenditure
total of $9,534,471 to a final budget of $10,216,658, an increase of $682,187. The increase reflects higher than
anticipated expenditures within the general government and the public works departments.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. Eagle Mountain City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of June 30, 2017, amounts to $143,661,507 (net of accumulated depreciation). The investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and construction
in progress.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Land 5 6.469.999 $ 6.469.999 § 3690765 § 3.690.764 $ 10160764 § 10.160.763
‘Water Shares - - 3.237.532 5,073,787 3,237,532 5.073.787.0
Buildings 3.292.174 3.326.242 1.468.092 1.661,651 4,760,266 4.987.893
Improvements 3.260.849 1.464.852 - 3,260,849 1.464.852
Equipment 1.215.163 1.033.734 55,403,377 50,789,001 56,618,540 51,822,735
Infrastructure 60,747.306 54945344 - 60,747,306 54,945 344
Construction m progress 3.199.629 494795 1.676.621 26,494 4,876,250 521,289
Total net assets § 78,185.120 $  67.734.966 $ 65476387 § 61.241.697 $ 143,661,507 § 128.976.663

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the footnotes to this financial report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $22,971,000. Of
this amount, $1,230,000 is from special assessment bonds. The remaining $21,741,000 is secured solely by
specific revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds and sales tax revenue bonds).

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Special assessment bonds $ 1230000 §  1.410.000 § 5 $ 1230000 § 1410000
Excise tax bonds - -
Capital Lease - -
Revenue bonds 21,741,000 22,419,000 21,741,000 22.419.000
Total bonds $ 1230000 $ 1410000 $ 21,741.000 § 22419000 $ 22971000 § 233829000

During fiscal year 2017, the City’s total outstanding debt decreased by a net amount of $858,000.

A8 management of Eagle Mountain City, we offer the readers of the financial statements this narrative overview



State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 4% of its to-

tal taxable value. The current limitations for the City are $39,192,030, which is significantly in excess of the
City’s outstanding general obligation debt. In addition, state statutes allow for an additional 4% to be used for
water, sewer, or other projects, thus resulting in a debt limit of 8% of total taxable value. Total limitation is
$76,144,061, which again exceeds the outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 10 in the Notes to this financial re-
port.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

* Eagle Mountain City issued 782 new building permits in fiscal year 2017. This reflects an increase
of 212 building permits over the previous fiscal year. The City anticipates that this trend will contin-
ue in fiscal year 2018.

* Eagle Mountain City administration is very conservative in estimating budgeted revenues. In the
general fund, budgeted revenues for fiscal year 2018 are 1% lower than the revenues collected for
fiscal year 2017. This enables the city to respond to any potential market disruptions that could neg-
atively impact revenue streams that the city depends on for services.

» No rate increases were budgeted for in fiscal year 2018, however, the city is actively engaged in
analyzing, both internally and externally, revenues from rates and expenditures related to the services
provided through those rates to determine future needs.

» With Eagle Mountain City’s high desert location, the city entered into an agreement with the Central
Utah Water Conservancy District to purchase 15,000 acre feet of water from fiscal year 2012 through
fiscal year 2021. As of fiscal year 2017, the city has purchased 1,020 acre feet of water and the
pump station and water line to transport the water to the city is fully functioning. The contract has
been renegotiated with CUWCD to purchase additional water when new users come on to the system
and have need for this specific water source.

Request for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Eagle Mountain City’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this

report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to: Eagle Mountain City, Finance
Director, 1650 East Stagecoach Run, Eagle Mountain, UT 84005.

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2017
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8,423,091 $ 15,016,445 23,439,536
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,436,170 3,694,315 9,130,485
Investments - 3,022,551 3,022,551
Accounts receivable
Customers (net of allowance) 328,789 1,751,329 2,080,118
Intergovernmental 275,489 - 275,489
Assessments receivable 1,591,763 - 1,591,763
Taxes receivable 1,983,179 - 1,983,179
Other - - -
Internal balances (423,781) 423,781 -
Note Receivable - net of current portion - 702,908 702,908
Prepaid bond insurance - net - - -
Net pension asset - - -
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation):
Land 6,469,999 3,690,765 10,160,764
Water Shares - 3,237,532 3,237,532
Buildings 3,292,174 1,468,092 4,760,266
Improvements 3,260,849 - 3,260,849
Equipment and systems 1,215,163 55,403,377 56,618,540
Infrustructure 60,747,306 - 60,747,306
Construction in progress 3,199,629 1,676,621 4,876,250
Total assets $ 95,799,820 $ 90,087,716 185,887,536
DEFERRED OUT FLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related costs $ 728,191 $ 152,821 881,012
Bond refunding costs - 1,005,405 1,005,405
Total Deferred outflow of resources 728,191 1,158,226 1,886,417
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,471,275 1,691,594 4,162,869
Deposits 4,184,082 44,520 4,228,602
Bond interest payable 10,059 84,593 94,652
Unearned revenue 480,316 - 480,316
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year 187,176 1,315,577 1,502,753
Due in more than one year 2,696,908 22,258,621 24,955,529
Total liabilities 10,029,815 25,394,905 35,424,720
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related costs 406,486 85,307 491,793
Deferred property taxes levied for future years 1,199,441 - 1,199,441
Total Deferred inflow of resources 1,605,927 85,307 1,691,234
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 76,834,279 43,226,694 120,060,973
Restricted
C Roads - - -
Impact fees 1,107,530 4,132,156 5,239,686
Unrestricted 6,950,460 18,406,880 25,357,340
Total net position $ 84,892,269 $ 65,765,730 150,657,999

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2017
Nonmajor Total
General General Debt Service Governmental Governmental
Fund Capital Projects 2000-1 Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,373,930 $ - $ - $ 651,211 $ 8,025,141
Restricted cash - 3,206,970 609,555 1,619,645 5,436,170
Receivables (net):
Accounts 284,482 - - 44,307 328,789
Taxes 1,983,179 - - - 1,983,179
Intergovernmental 275,489 - - - 275,489
Special assessments - - 464,282 1,127,481 1,591,763
Other - - - - -
Total assets $ 9,917,080 $ 3,206,970 $ 1,073,837 $ 3,442,644 $ 17,640,531
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable & accrued liabilities $ 1,068,632 $ 1,189,339 $ 868 $ 174,138 $ 2,432,977
Deposits 4,184,082 - - - 4,184,082
Unearned revenue 480,316 - - - 480,316
Total liabilities 5,733,030 1,189,339 868 174,138 7,097,375
Deferred inflows of Resources:
Deferred property taxes levied for future years 1,199,441 - - - 1,199,441
Deferred property taxes-delinquent 25,286 - - - 25,286
Unavailable special improvement assessments - - 464,282 1,127,481 1,591,763
Total deferred inflows of resources 1,224,727 - 464,282 1,127,481 2,816,490
Fund Balances:
Fund balances Restricted for:
Roads - - - - -
Impact fees - - - 1,107,530 1,107,530
Special assessments - - 608,687 747,200 1,355,887
Assigned, for:
Storm water - - - 6,058 6,058
Debt service - - - 280,237 280,237
Capital projects - 2,017,631 - - 2,017,631
Unassigned: 2,959,323 - - - 2,959,323
Total fund balances 2,959,323 2,017,631 608,687 2,141,025 7,726,666
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances $ 9,917,080 $ 3,206,970 $ 1,073,837 $ 3442644 $ 17,640,531

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Balance Sheet Reconciliation to
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2017

Total fund balances - governmental fund types:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore,
are deferred in the funds.

Net pension assets and deferred outflows of resources are not available financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and pension liabilities, are
not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deferred inflows of resources are not available financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet
management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service
funds are included in the governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Net assets of government activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

$ 7,726,666

78,185,120

1,617,049

728,191
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(406,483)

(64,132)

5 84892269



EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Nonmajor Total
General General Debt Service Governmental Governmental
Fund Capital Projects 2000-1 Fund Funds
REVENUES
Taxes S 5,694,480 $ - $ -8 40335 $ 5,734,815
Special assessments - - 56,978 250,663 307,641
Licenses and permits 2,895,474 - - - 2,895,474
Intergovernmental 1,322,460 13,823 - - 1,336,283
Charges for services 1,288,452 - - 398,207 1,686,659
Impact fees - - 579,249 2,729,355 3,308,604
Miscellaneous 640,324 16,736 4,870 4,946 666,876
Total revenues 11,841,190 30,559 641,097 3,423,506 15,936,352
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 2,750,887 - 51,361 224,786 3,027,034
Public safety 2,332,378 - - - 2,332,378
Public works 3,115,775 - 235,473 1,448,620 4,799,868
Planning and zoning 487,486 - - - 487,486
Community development 1,171,572 - - 46,216 1,217,788
Debt service:
Principal retirement - - - 180,000 180,000
Bond issuance costs - - - -
Interest and fiscal charges - - - 70,618 70,618
Capital outlay - 4,444,671 - - 4,444,671
Total expenditures 9,858,098 4,444,671 286,834 1,970,240 16,559,843
Excess revenues over (under)
expenditures 1,983,092 (4,414,112) 354,263 1,453,266 (623,491)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from asset disposals - - - -
Loss on grant noncompliance - - - -
Transfers in 91,023 6,431,710 - 5,000 6,527,733
Transfers out (2,001,387) - - (1,841,625) (3,843,012)
Total other financing sources and uses (1,910,364) 6,431,710 - (1,836,625) 2,684,721
Net change in fund balance 72,728 2,017,598 354,263 (383,359) 2,061,230
Fund balances - beginning of year 3,070,888 33 254,424 2,524,384 5,849,729
Restatement of net position (see Note 17) (184,293) - - - (184,293)
Fund balances - end of year $ 2,959,323 $ 2,017,631 $ 608,687 $ 2,141,025 $ 7,726,666

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase (decrease) net assets.
- Current year capital contributions from developers and loss on transfer of assets

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds.

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provide current financial
resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in
the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in
the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of the fleet
management to the individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal
service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in as expenditures in

the governmental funds

Change in net assets of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2017

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Governmental
Activities
NonMajor Internal
‘Water Sewer Electric Gas Enterprise Funds Total Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents N 3,446,535 $ 3,883,843 $ 17,438 6,992,350 676,279 15,016,445  § 397,950
Accounts receivable - net 563,112 482,548 201,971 339,270 164,428 1,751,329 -
Due from other funds - - - - - - -
Total current assets 4,009,647 4,366,391 219,409 7,331,620 840,707 16,767,774 397,950
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,420,159 274,156 - - - 3,694,315 -
Investments - - - 3,022,551 - 3,022,551 -
Note receivable (Net of Current Portion) - - - - 702,908 702,908 -
Net pension asset - - - - - - -
Land, equipment, buildings and improv. 53,349,314 36,471,635 - - - 89,820,949 2,123,819
Less: Accumulated depreciation (13,988,152) (10,356,409) - - - (24,344,561) (1,318,702)
Total noncurrent assets 42,781,321 26,389,382 - 3,022,551 702,908 72,896,162 805,117
Total assets 46,790,968 30,755,773 219,409 10,354,171 1,543,615 89,663,936 1,203,067
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Bond refunding costs - net 432,324 573,081 - - - 1,005,405
Pension related costs 82,171 65,144 - - 5,506 152,821 25,414
Total deferred outflow of resources 514,495 638,225 - - 5,506 1,158,226 25,414
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,100,990 471,557 - 246 118,802 1,691,595 38,299
Due to other funds - - - - - - -
Debt interest payable 36,079 48,514 - - - 84,593 909
Current portion of long-term debt 856,827 458,750 - - - 1,315,577 113,056
Total current liabilities 1,993,896 978,821 - 246 118,802 3,091,765 152,264
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deposits 44,520 - - - - 44,520 -
Compensated absences 27,906 10,656 - - - 38,562 5,306
Net pension liability 150,843 119,586 - - 10,108 280,537 46,653
Long-term debt (net of current portion) 8,334,084 13,605,438 - - - 21,939,522 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 8,557,353 13,735,680 - - 10,108 22,303,141 51,959
Total liabilities 10,551,249 14,714,501 - 246 128,910 25,394,906 204,223
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related costs 45,869 36,364 - - 3,074 85,307 14,187
Total deferred outflow of resources 45,869 36,364 - - 3,074 85,307 14,187
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 30,602,575 12,624,119 - - - 43,226,694 692,061
Restricted - impact fees 2,357,101 1,775,055 - - - 4,132,156 -
Unrestricted 3,748,669 2,243,959 219,409 10,353,925 1,417,137 17,983,099 318,010
Total net position $ 36,708,345 $ 16,643,133 $ 219,409 10,353,925 1,417,137 65,341,949  $ 1,010,071
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities to the enterprise funds 423,781
Net position business-type actvities 65,765,730

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to interfund services
Payments to employees
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital
Financing Activities
Transfers in
Transfers out
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
financing activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related

Financing Activities

Payable Forgiveness

Purchases of capital assets

Impact fees collected

Capital grant proceeds

Proceeds from sale of assets

Payments for developer reimbursements
Principal paid on capital debt

Interest paid on capital debt

Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest and dividends received

Net increase (decrease) in cash and

cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning
Cash and cash equivalents (deficit) - ending

Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating
activities:

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense
(Inc.)/decrease in accounts rec.
(Inc.)/decrease in due from other funds
(Inc.)/decrease in due from net pension asset
(Inc.)/decrease in deferred outflows
Increase/(decr.) in accounts payable
Increase/(decr.) in due to other funds
Increase/(decr.) in compensated absences
Increase/(decr.) in net pension liabilitiy
Increase/(decr.) in deferred inflows
Increase/(decr.) in deposits

Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Noncash investing, capital, and financing
activities
Contributions by developers

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental

Activities
Nonmajor Internal
Water Sewer Electric Gas Enterprise Funds Total BTAs Service Fund

$ 3,761,426 $ 3,658,253 § 186,718  $ 105,638  $ 1,289,686  $ 9,001,721  $ 866,437
(1,769,764) (1,738,672) (62,787) (61,515) (1,204,879) (4,837,617) (220,533)
(502,193) (405,274) - - (82,907) (990.374) (311,590)
1,489,469 1,514,307 123,931 44,123 1,900 3,173,730 334,314

165,934 - - - 72,000 237,934 -

(28.967) (100,860) (760,385) (2,185,351) - (3.075,563) -

136,967 (100.860) (760.385) (2.185.351) 72,000 (2.837.629) -
(3,340,806) - - - - (3,340,806) (420,058)
3,434,524 1,017,125 - - - 4,451,649 -
2,729,482 - - - - 2,729,482 49,116
(188,063) (278,985) - - - (467,048) -
(870,120) (420,200) - - - (1,290,320) (110,916)
(302,097) (401,528) - - - (703,625) (4,323)
1,462,920 (83.588) - - - 1,379,332 (486,181)

1,984 1,248 - 55,550 - 58,782 -
3,091,340 1,331,107 (636,454) (2,085.,678) 73,900 1,774,215 (151.,867)
3,775,354 2,826,892 653,892 12,100,579 602,379 19,959,096 549,817

$ 6,866,694 $ 4,157,999 §$ 17,438 $ 10,014,901 $ 676,279  $ 21,733.311  $ 397,950
$ 59,025 $ 313,503 $ (61,235)  $ (61,731) % (29,120) % 220,442  $ 27,838
1,532,550 1,094,290 - - - 2,626,840 283,339

(42,685) 2,989 186,718 105,638 4,903 257,563 -

19 22 - - 2 43 6
(7.126) 21,601 - - 2,176 16,651 (1,778)

(85,042) 141,426 (1,552) 216 29,969 85,017 21,325

- - R - (5,481) (5,481) -

3,566 1,466 - - (549) 4,483 1,854
(1,446) (56,445) - - - (57,891) (1,311)

10,478 (4,545) - - - 5,933 3,041

20,130 - - - - 20,130 -

1,430,444 1,200,804 185,166 105,854 31,020 2,953,288 306,476

$ 1.489.469 $ 1,514,307 § 123,931  $ 44,123 $ 1,900 $ 3,173,730 $ 334,314
$ 2,497,783 $ 3,232,970  $ - $ - $ -3 5,730,753  § -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Eagle Mountain (the City) financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) accepted in the United States of America as applicable to Governmental units.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for accounting
and financial reporting principles.

A. Reporting Entity

Eagle Mountain City was incorporated December 1996, under laws of the State of Utah. Under the present
form of government, administrative and legislative powers are vested in a governing body consisting of
the Mayor and a five-member City Council. They are assisted by a City Administrator, who also is the
City’s budget officer. The treasurer is currently responsible for the financial matters of the City, including
money management, accounts payable, financial statements, utility billing, and accounts receivable. The
City provides the following services as mandated by law: Public Safety, Highways and Streets, Sanitation,
Parks, Water, Public Improvements, Planning and Zoning, and General Administrative Services.

The General Purpose Financial Statements of the City include the financial statements for all activities of
the City based upon the criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
14. The primary criterion for including a board or agency in this report is financial accountability, which
determines whether an entity is a component unit of the financial reporting entity. Blended component
units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the government’s operations, and therefore,
data from these units are combined with data of the primary government. Discretely presented component
units are reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize they are legally
separate from the City.

* The Redevelopment Agency of Eagle Mountain City is considered a blended component unit and is
included in the governmental funds of the City. It was established to prepare and carry out plans to
improve, rehabilitate and redevelop blighted areas within the City. The RDA is governed by a board
of trustees composed of the Mayor and members of the City Council. Although it is a legally separate
entity for the City, the RDA is reported as if it were part of the primary government because of the
City’s ability to impose its will upon the operations of the RDA. The RDA is included in these financial
statements as the Redevelopment Agency Special Revenue fund. Separate financial statements are not
issued for the RDA.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes
in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
for support.
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

32

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function

or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting. and Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized in the year
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e.,
when they are “measurable and available”). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be
determined, and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all revenues available if they are
collected within 60 days after the year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt. Expenditures related to compensated
absences, claims, and judgments are also recorded, but only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, and earned but unreimbursed state and federal grants
associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual, and so have
been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.



EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The general capital projects fund accounts for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by the proprietary funds.)

The Special Improvement Districts Debt Service Fund, 2001-1 is used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or capital projects) that are legally restricted to
expenditures for repayment of debt obligations.
The government reports the following major proprietary funds:
The water fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water operations.
The sewer fund accounts for the activities of the City’s sewer operations.
The electric fund accounts for the activities of the City’s electric operations.
The gas fund accounts for the activities of the City’s gas operations.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

The internal service fund accounts for the fleet management services provided to other departments of
the government on a cost reimbursement basis.

As a general rule, the effect of inter fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments to the general fund by the various enterprise funds
for providing administrative services for such funds. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenue reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating

revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

34

D. Cash and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

The City’s temporary cash investments consist of amounts deposited with Utah Public Treasurer’s
Investment Fund and money market funds. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

E. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has transactions between funds to distribute administrative
costs and distribute grant proceeds. These transactions are generally reflected as operating transfers,
which are transfers from a fund authorized to receive certain revenues to the fund through which the
resources are to be expended. The General Fund billed the respective enterprise funds for administrative
costs associated with billing and collection of utility charges. These changes are reflected as revenues and
expenses in the respective funds.

F. Restricted Assets

The City maintains cash balances as required by bond covenants. These amounts are reflected in the
financial statements as restricted cash. It is the City’s policy to use restricted assets first and then unrestricted
assets.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life
in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets’ lives are not capitalized.



EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and structures 30-50
Improvements other than buildings 20-50
Infrastructure 30-50
Machinery and equipment 5-10
Furniture and fixtures 5-10

H. Compensated Absences

City employees accrue earned vacation, sick leave, long-term sick leave, and comp time throughout the year.
They are allowed to carry forward all accrued comp, long term sick leave, and up to 240 hours of vacation
time into the next calendar year, but are encouraged to take their vacation leave within the calendar year in
which it is earned. Upon termination of employment, an employee will be compensated for up to 240 hours
of unused vacation leave, comp time, and long-term sick leave, but will forfeit any accumulated sick leave.

Vacation pay is accrued when incurred in proprietary funds and reported as a fund liability. Vacation pay that
is expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and
a fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it.

I. Taxes

In Utah, county governments assess, levy, collect, and disburse two principal types of tax: (1) personal
property tax, which is assessed on business assets other than real estate, and (2) tax on real estate and
improvements. Business personal property and real estate taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property
as of January 1. Taxes are levied on all business personal property on January 1, and real estate and
improvement taxes are levied on January 1 and are payable by November 30. The real property taxes,
which are due in November, are reported as a receivable from property taxes on the financial statements.
Because these taxes are not considered available to liquidate liabilities of the current period, they are offset
by deferred revenue.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

36

The City Council is authorized by state statute to levy a tax against all real and personal property located
within its boundaries. The Council must set a tax rate by June 22 each year.

The County Treasurer, acting as a tax collector, must settle and disburse all tax collections to all taxing
entities on a routine basis.

J. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred
charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the accrual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. Interest expense is not
included in the functions of governmental activities.

K. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to/deductions from URS’s fiduciary

net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by URS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

L. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Beginning with 2013, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and Statement No. 65, Items
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. These Statements provide financial reporting guidance to
standardize the presentation of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their
effects on a government’s net position. They also establish accounting standards



EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

and financial reporting standards that reclassify certain items as deferred outflows of resources or deferred
inflows of resources that were previously reported as assets and liabilities, and recognizes certain items as
outflows of resources or inflows of resources that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.

In addition to assets, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/
expenditure) until then. The City has two items, bond refunding costs and pension related costs, that are reported

on the statement of net position as a deferred outflow.

In addition to liabilities, the financial statements will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue)
until that time. The City has two items, one of which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting
that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from property taxes
and pension related costs. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period
that the amounts become available. The item, revenue for future year, is reported in both the statement of
net position and the governmental funds balance sheet. These amounts account for property taxes levied on

January 1, 2016, for the 2017 fiscal year..

M. Fund Equity

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on a hierarchy that shows, from

highest to lowest, the level or form of constraints on fund balance resources and the extent to which the City

is bound to honor them. The City first determines and reports non-spendable balances, then restricted, then

committed, and so forth. The City’s governmental funds beginning balances have been restated to reflect the

below classifications. Fund balance classifications are summarized as follows:

* Non spendable. This category includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent because they

are either a) not in spendable form or b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Fund
balance amounts related to inventories, prepaid expenditures, and endowments are classified as non

spendable.

» Restricted. This category includes net fund resources that are subject to external constraints that

have been placed on the use of the resources either a) imposed by creditors (such as through a debt
covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law

through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

37



EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Restricted fund balance amounts include the following:
a)  Unspent B&C road funds.

b)  Unspent Impact fees.

c)  Special Assessments.

» Committed. This category includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
established by formal action of the City Council. Fund balance commitments

can only be removed or changed by the same type of resolution of the City Council. This classification
also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically

committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. The City Council has not committed
any fund balance amounts.

» Assigned. This category includes Governmental Fund balance amounts that the City intends to be
used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent is expressed by formal
action of the City’s administration comprised of the City administrative council. This category also
includes the remaining positive fund balance for other governmental funds. The City has assigned debt
service requirement, storm drain charges and capital projects.

* Unassigned. Residual balances in the Governmental Funds are classified as unassigned.
It is the City’s policy to use restricted, committed, assigned, and then unassigned fund balance.

N. Use of Estimates

Presenting financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires

management to make certain estimates concerning assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Actual results
may vary from these estimates.

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental
funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets.
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NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

This difference primarily results from the long-term economic focus of the statement of net assets versus the
current financial resources focus of the governmental fund balance sheets.

1. Capital related items:

When capital assets (property, plant, and equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities
are purchased or constructed, the cost of these assets is reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. However, the statement of net assets includes those capital assets among the assets of the
city as a whole.

Cost of capital assets $110,636,178
Accumulated depreciation (32,451,058)
Net adjustment to increase fund balance
total governmental funds to arrive at net-
assets - governmental activities) 78,185,12

. Long-term assets:

Long-term assets applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not available to pay for
expenditures of the current period and are, therefore, deferred in the governmental balance sheet.

Special assessment revenue $1,610,396
Delinquent property taxes 6,653

Net adjustment to increase fund balance —
total governmental funds to arrive at net
assets - governmental activities 1,617,04

. Long-term debt transactions:

Long-term liabilities applicable to the City’s governmental activities are not due and payable in
the current period and, accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities in the fund statements. All
liabilities (both current and long-term) are reported in the statement of net assets.
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STATEMENTS (Continued)

Bonds payable ($1,230,000)
Capital lease payable ( 113,057)
Bond interest payable ( 10,059)
Bond premium ( 7,784)
Net Pension Liability ( 1,336,750)
Compensated absences (__196.492)

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance —
total governmental funds to arrive at
net postition — governmental activities (82,894,142)

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures., and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — total governmental funds and changes in net assets
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.”

Capital outlay $ 5,088,694
Depreciation expense (_3.246,350)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund
balances — total governmental funds to arrive at

changes in net assets of governmental activities ($__1,842,344)

Another element of that reconciliation states, “The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities.”
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NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Principal payments:
Amortization of bond premiums $ 487
Principal paid on bonds and capital leases 290,916
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund
balances — total governmental funds to arrive
at changes in net position of governmental activities 291,4

Another element of that reconciliation states that certain expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources and are, therefore, not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds.

Accrued bond interest $ 2,021
Pension related costs (63,400)
Compensated absences (20.051)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund
balances — total governmental funds to arrive
at changes in net assets of governmental activities $ (81,430)

NOTE 3 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Annual budgets are prepared and adopted in accordance with the Uniform Fiscal Procedures Act adopted by
the State of Utah. Once a budget has been adopted, it remains in effect until it has been formally revised.
Furthermore, in accordance with state law, all appropriations lapse at the end of the budget year. If any obligations
are contracted for and are in excess of adopted budget, they are not a valid or enforceable claim against the City.
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. All funds of the City
have legally adopted budgets.

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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NOTE 3 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING (Continued)

The City adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

A.

On or before the first regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council in May, the City Administrator,
authorized under state statute to be appointed budget officer, submits a proposed operating budget. The
operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

A public hearing is held, at which time the taxpayers’ comments are heard. Notice of the hearing is given
in the local newspaper at least seven days prior to the hearing. Copies of the proposed budget are made
available for public inspection ten days prior to the public hearing.

On or before June 22, a final balanced budget must be adopted through passage of a resolution for the
subsequent fiscal year beginning July 1.

Control of budgeted expenditures is exercised, under state law, at the departmental level. The City
Administrator, however, acting as budget officer, has the authority to transfer budget appropriations between
line items within any department of any budgetary fund. The City Council, by resolution, has the authority
to transfer budget appropriations between the individual departments of any budgetary fund.

Budget appropriations for any department may be reduced by resolution.
A public hearing, as required in (B) above, must be held to increase the total appropriations of any one
governmental fund type; however, after the original public hearing, operating and capital budgets of

proprietary fund types may be increased by resolution without an additional hearing.

Encumbrances lapse at year end. Encumbered amounts carry over to the following year and are subject to
reappropriation. Therefore, no encumbrances are presented in the financial statements.

During the budget year, the City modified the budget using the above procedures.
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NOTE 4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. At June 30, 2017 the City’s
cash balance consisted of the following:

All Fund Types
Cash. cash equivalents. and temporary cash investments $ 23.577.536
Cash. and cash equivalents - restricted 8.992.485
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 32.570.021

While the City’s carrying amount of deposits was $36,891,892 the balance in the City’s bank account

and cash on hand was $32,570,021, with the difference being due to outstanding checks and deposits in transit.

A. Deposits

Deposits — Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management
Act in handling its depository and investing transactions. The City considers the actions of the State
Money Management Council to be necessary and sufficient for adequate protection of its uninsured bank
deposits. City funds are deposited in qualified depositories as defined by the Act. The City does not

have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2017, the City’s custodial credit risk, for
deposits were as follows:

Custodial Credit Balance
Depository Account Risk June 30, 2017
Checking and savings Insured and collateralized $ 250.000
Checking and savings Uninsured and uncollateralized 1.951.171
Investment sweep Uninsured and uncollateralized 12.565.977
Total deposits $ 14.767.148
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B.
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Investments

The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate investments
for the District and the conditions for making investment transactions. Investment transactions
may be conducted only through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly with issuers of
the investment securities.

Statutes authorize the District to invest in negotiable or nonnegotiable deposits of qualified
depositories and permitted negotiable depositories; repurchase and reverse repurchase
agreements; commercial paper classified as “first tier”” by two nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations, one of which must be Moody’s Investor Services or Standard and Poor’s;
bankers’ acceptances; obligations of the U.S. Treasury, including bills, notes, and bonds; bonds,
notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State; fixed rate
corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated “A” or higher, or the equivalent of “A”
or higher, by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; shares or certificates

in a money market mutual fund as defined in the Act; and the Utah State Public Treasurer’s
Investment Fund. All investments held by the City at June 30, 2017, comply with the provisions
of the Act.

The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Public Treasurer’s Investment Fund (PTIF). The
PTIF is available for investment of funds administered by any Utah public treasurer. The PTIF

is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The PTIF is authorized and regulated
by the Money Management Act, Section 51-7, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended. The Act
established the Money Management Council, which oversees the activities of the State Treasurer
and the PTIF and details the types of authorized investments. The PTIF is considered a cash
equivalent for the purposes of the financial statements.

Deposits in the PT1F are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and
participants share proportionally in any realized gains or losses on investments.

The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and
losses (net of administration fees of the PTIF) are allocated based upon the participant’s average

daily balance. The fair value of the PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the value of

the pool shares.
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NOTE 4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Fair Value of Investments

The District measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guidelines established by gen-

erally accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows:

. Level 1: Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets
. Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted market prices
. Level 3: Unobservable inputs

At June 30, 2017, the District had the following recurring fair value measurements.

Fair Value Measurements Using

Fair
Investments Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Utah Public Treasurer's $ 19.090.634 5 - $ 19,090.634 $
Investment Fund
Morten Asset
Management Account 3.034.110 3.034.110

Total Investments

§ 22124744 § 3.034.110 § 19.090.634

$

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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NOTE 4 - CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
The City’s investments are managed through participation in the State Public Treasurers’ Investment
Fund and through a trust arrangement with a local bank, and a liquid asset management account. As of

June 30, 2017, the City had the following investments:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Less More than
Investments Than 1 1-5 6-10 10
Utah Public Treasurer's § 19,090,634 $ 19,090,634 $ - $ -
Investment Fund
Morten Asset
Management Account 3,034,110 3,034,110 - -
Total investments § 22.124.744 $ 22.124.744 $ - $ -

Investments — Interest Rate Risk. The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However,
interest rate risk is managed by compliance with the Utah Money Management Act, which provides guidance for
handling depository and investing transactions in order to minimize interest rate risk.

Investments — Credit Risk. The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act in handling
its depository and investing transactions. The City funds are deposited in qualified depositories as defined
by the Act. The Act also authorizes the City to invest in the Utah Public Treasurers Investment Fund (PTIF),
certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. agency issues, restricted mutual funds, and obligations of
governmental entities within the State of Utah. The City’s investments are invested in accordance with the Act.
The State Money Management Council provides regulatory oversight for the investments. The degree of risk of
the investments depends on the underlying portfolio. The Act and Council rules govern the financial reporting
requirements of qualified depositories in which public funds may be deposited and prescribe the conditions under
which the designation of a depository shall remain in effect. If a qualified depository should become ineligible to
hold public funds, public treasurers are notified immediately. The City considers the actions of the Council to be
necessary and sufficient for adequate protection of its investments. The City has no investment policy that would
further limit its investment choices.
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The PTIF operates and reports to participants on a amortized cost basis. The income gains, and losses (net of
administration fees) of the PTIF are allocated based on the participant’s average daily balance. The fair value
of the PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the value of the pool shares with a difference of $86,887,
which is immaterial.

Quality Ratinps
Fair Maore than
Investments Value AAA AA A Unrated

Utah Public Treasurer's $19.090634 § - $ - 3 - $19.090,634

Tnvestment Fund
Morten Asset 3034110 3034110 - -

Management Account

Total investments $22.124744  § 3,034,110 $ -8 - $19.090,634

Investments Custodial Credit Risk. For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s investment arrangements primarily invest in
the Utah Public Treasurers Investment fund and agencies or in instrumentalities of the United States that meet
the allowable investments of the Utah Money Management Act. The City does not have an investment policy
for custodial credit risk
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NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year end for the government’s individual major and nonmajor funds, including the applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

SID MNonmajor Hon major
Genaral 2001-1 Water Sewsr Electnc Gas Enterprise Gondl Total
Fecemvables:
Arcounts 3 435,667 5 - § 678323 0§ 623363 0§ 439061 5 ST T 1 w447 % 50,116 § 2598703
Taxes 1,983,179 - - - - - - - 1,983,179
Spacial
Assessments - 464 282 - - - - - 1,127.481 1,591,763
Intergovernmentsl 275,439 - - - - - - - 275489
Less: allowance
for mncollectible
accounts (141,185) - (115,211) (140,8135) (2371900 (238,256) (40,119) {3.509) (918,583)

5 133150 $ 464282 0§ 363112 % 482548 0§ 101971 8 339270 § 164428 3 L17L78B § 5930340

NOTE 6 - NOTE RECEIVABLE

During the fiscal year 2012 the City sold the golf course to an outside party for $550,000. The purchase was
financed with a note receivable to the City of $550,000. The note has no interest rate. The outside party will
pay the City 10% of its net income annually until the debt is repaid. The Note is treated as long term on the
financial statements. During fiscal year 2017 the City negotiated with the Golf course to amend the original
contract to include unpaid utility fees owed to the City in the amount of $152,908. As of June 30, 2017 the
outstanding note balance was $702,908.

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND TRANSFERS

The operating transfers of the City consist of the following:

Capital SID Nonmajor Business Internal

Transfer In: General Projects 2000-1 Govrnmil Type Service Total
General $ -8 - % - § 01023 % - 8 - 8 01,023
SID 2000-1 - - - - - -
Nonmajor govil. 5,000 - - - - 5,000
Capital projects 1.846.435 - - 1,750,000 2835275 6.431.710
Internal Service - - - - - -
Business type 149052 - - 602 704.445 - 854000

Total transfer out § 2001387 § - % - $ 1841625 % 3530720 § - % 7382732

The City transferred monies to support capital project payments in the capital projects fund. The City also
transferred monies to support operations in the economic development fund.

Governmental funds report deferred inflows in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered
to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition
in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the
various components of deferred inflows reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable Unearned

Property taxes receivable (general fund) $1.199.441 $ 1.199.441
Property tax delinquent 25,286
Special assessments (special revenue fund) 1.591.763

Total $2.816.490 $ 1.199.441
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NOTE 8 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Primary Government Beginning Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Increases Transfers Decreases Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land § 6,469,999 $ - § - $ - $ 0,469,999
Construction in progress 494,795 2,713,234 (8,400) - 3,199,629
Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,964,794 2,713,234 (8,400) 0 9,669,028
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 4,194,577 80,631 - 4,275,208
[mprovements 1,592,649 1,857,921 8,400 - 3,458,970
Machinery and equipment 3,242,873 576,465 - 185,842 3,633,496
Infrastructure 81,130,624 8,468,252 - - 89,598,876
Total capital assets being depreciated 90,160,723 10,983,269 8,400 185,842 100,966,550
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 868,334 114,700 - - 983,034
[mprovements 127,797 70,324 - - 198,121
Machinery and equipment 2,209,139 395,036 - 185,842 2,418,333
Infrastructure 26,185,280 2,666,290 - - 28,851,570
Total accumulated depreciation 29,390,550 3,246,350 0 185,842 32,451,058
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 60,770,173 7,736,919 8,400 0 68,515,492
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 67,734,967 $ 10,450,153 $ - $ - $ 78,185,120

Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Transfers Decreases Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ 26,494 $ 1,676,621 $ (26494) $ - 3 1,676,621
Land 3,690,765 - - - 3,690,765
Water shares 5,073,787 373,775 - 2,210,030 3,237,532
Total capital assets not being depreciated 8,791,046 2,050,396 (26,494) 2,210,030 8,004,918
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 2,824,595 - - - 2,824,595
Equipment and systems 71,343,778 7,021,162 26,494 - 78,391,435
Total capital assets being depreciated 74,168,373 7,021,162 26,494 - 81,216,030
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 1,162,944 193,559 - - 1,356,503
Equipment and Systems 20,554,777 2,433,281 - - 22,988,058
Total accumulated depreciation 21,717,721 2,626,840 - 24344561
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 52,450,652 4,394,322 26,494 - 56,871,469
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 61,241,698 $ 6,444,718 $ - $ 2210030  § 65476387
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NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:
Governmental activities:

General government $ 86,331
Public safety -
Public works 3,114,627
Planning 567
Community development 44,825

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 3,246,350

Business-type activities:

Water $ 1,392,861
Sewer 1,041,074
Golf course 20,006
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 2,453,941
Total depreciation expense $ 5,700,291

The City has various construction projects as of June 30, 2017. The City’s commitments with
contractors are as follows:

Park projects $ 1,956,000
Road projects 3,012,000
Cemetery projects 70,000
Water projects 407,000
Total $ 5,445,000

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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NOTE 9 - LEASE COMMITMENTS

During 2014, the City executed a new lease in the internal service fund in the amount of $544,278, payable in
annual installments for 4 years.

Assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Activities
Asset:
Machmery and equipment 3 544278
Less: Accumulated amortization (435.422)
Total 3 108.856

Amortization of capital assets purchased under capital leases are included in depreciation.

The future payments required by the lease are as follows:

Governmental
Fiscal Year Amount
2018 $ 115,239
Total nunimum lease payments 115,239
Less amounts representing interest (2,182)
Present value of munimum lease payments $ 113,057
As of June 30, 2017 the lease payable consisted of the following:
Total Capatal
Leases Payable
All Fund Types
Capital leases payable $ 113,057
Current portion capital lease payable (113,057)

Long-term capital leases payable $ -
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Bonds and notes payable at June 30, 2017, are comprised of the following:

1. $2,400,000 Eagle Mountain City Special Assessment Bond 2014 (SAA-2014)
This bond requires semiannual payments of interest and annual payments of principal due November
1, 2014 through May 1, 2033, bearing a variable interest rate ranging from 2-5% the debt service
requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 55,000 $ 56,118 $ 111,118
2019 55,000 54.468 109,468
2020 60,000 52,818 112,818
2021 65,000 61,018 126,018
2022 60,000 48,906 108,906
2023-2027 360,000 202,292 562,292
2028-2032 465,000 99 462 564.462
2033 110,000 5,500 115,500
Total $ 1,230,000 $ 580,582 $ 1,810,582

2. $16,500,000 Eagle Mountain Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds Series 2007
This bond was used to refund the original Water and Sewer Bond. This bond requires annual installments
of principal and interest due beginning November 2008 through November 2026, bearing an interest
ranging from 4.00% to 5.00%. During 2015 the bond was partially defeased through an advanced
refunding, $9,705,000 of the principal was defeased and the remaining $4,855,000 will require annual
installments of principal and interest due beginning November 2015 through November 2026. The debt
service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 375,000 $ 192,725 $ 567,725
2019 400,000 172,350 572,350
2020 420,000 152,850 572,850
2021 430,000 131,600 561,600
2022 460,000 109,350 569,350
2023-2027 2,060,000 201.638 2,261,638
Total $ 4145000 $ 960,513 $ 5,105,513
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

3. $6,665,000 Eagle Mountain City Sewer Water Quality Board Bond Series 2008.
This bond was issued for the construction of a waste water treatment plant expansion. This bond requires
annual payments of interest and principal beginning December 2009 through December 2028, bearing an
interest rate of 1%. The bond is a reimbursement bond. The total amount of the bond is $6,665,000. The
debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 245,000 $ 56.800 $ 301.800
2019 275.000 54.350 329.350
2020 310.000 51.600 361.600
2021 340.000 48.500 388.500
2022 375.000 43,225 418,225
2023-2027 2.325.000 151.675 2,476,675
2028-2031 1.810.000 28.050 1.838.050
Total $ 5.680.000 $ 434,200 $6.114.200

4. $11,085,000 Eagle Mountain City Gas & Electric Revenue Bond Series 2012.
This bond was issued for the construction of a utilities building and redundancy lines within the
City. During 2015 the bond was defeased through an advanced refunding. The City used a portion of
the proceeds from the sale of the Utility System to advance refund $9,195,000 of outstanding 2012
series Gas and Electric revenue-bonds. As of June 30, 2017, $7,735,000 of the original debt is still
outstanding.

5. $2,536,000 Eagle Mountain City Water Quality Revenue Bond Series 2013
This bond was issued for water system improvements within the City. The bond requires annual
principal beginning May 2015, and interest payments beginning May 2014 through May 2034, bearing
an interest rate of 1.72%. The debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 105,000 5 38,373 $ 143373
2019 107,000 36,567 143,567
2020 109,000 34,727 143,727
2021 111,000 32,852 143,852
2022 113,000 30,942 143,942
2023-2027 652.000 123 478 775478
2028-2032 726,000 64,380 790,380
2033-2034 308,000 7,965 315,965
Total $ 2231000 $ 369284 $ 2,600,284
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NOTE 10 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

6. $4,560,000 Note Payable Water Well.
The note was issued with a settlement of a lawsuit regarding the purchase of a well within the City. The
note carries no interest rate. The note requires annual principal payments with a set amortization for
2014 and 2015. The note will then be repaid with impact fees as they are collected by the City.

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2018 $ 590,577 $ - $ 590,577
Total $ 590577 $ - $ 590,577

7. $9,685,000 2014 Water and Sewer Refunding Bond.
This bond was used to refund a portion of the original Water and Sewer Bonds. This bond requires annual
installments of principal beginning November 2021 and interest due beginning November 2015 through
November 2032, bearing an interest ranging from 4.00%. The debt service requirements to maturity are

as follows:
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2018 $ - $ 379,150 $ 379150
2019 - 379,150 379,150
2020 - 379,150 379,150
2021 120,000 377,650 497.650
2022 185,000 373375 558,375
2023-2027 1,890,000 1,737,550 3,627,550
2028-2032 7,490,000 867,200 §,357.200
Total $ 0685000 § 4493225  $14,178225
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

8. Changes in long term liabilities.
Changes in bonds payable, deferred items, capital leases, and compensated absences during the fiscal
year June 30, 2017 were as follows:

July 1 June 30 Due in
Governmental Activities: 2016 Additions Beductions 2017 Ce ¥t
Bonds Payable
Special assessment bond 2006 200-1 5 1410000 5 - b3 180,000 % 1.230,000 5 53,000
Unamertized bond preminm 3,271 - 487 7.784 -
Total bonds payable 1418271 - 180 487 1,237,784 55,000
Leases payable 223973 - 110,916 113.057 113,057
Net pension hability 1,286,897 490853 - 1,336,750 -
Compensated absences 179,893 124 507 107,908 196,492 19,119
Gov't activities long-term debt § 3109034 5 174,360 3993511 $ 2.884083 $ 187176
Business-Type Activities:
Bonds payable:
2008 water and sewer refunding bond § 4305000 b3 - § 3600000 % 4.145.000 § 375000
Unamortized bond premimum - - - - -
2009 sewer revenue bond 5.895,000 - 215,000 5.680.000 245,000
2011 Electric and gas revenne bond - - - -
Unamortized bond premium - - - - -
2013 Water quality revenue bond 2,334,000 - 103,000 2,231,000 105,000
2013 Gas and electric refunding bond - - - - -
2014 Water and sewer refunding bend 9.685,000 - - 9.685.000 -
Unamortized bond premitm 0985.090 - 61,568 923,522 -
Total bonds payable 23.404.090 - 739,568 22.664.522 725,000
Notes Payable 1.202.897 - 612,320 590,577 390,577
Met pension liability 343,900 - 63,372 280,537 -
Compensated absences 33.530 24571 19.539 38.562 -
Business type long-term debt 5 24084426 b3 24571 § 1434799 % 23574198 $ 1315577

NOTE 11 - STATE RETIREMENT PLANS

Description of plans — Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah Retirement
Systems. The Utah Retirements Systems are comprised of the following pension trust funds:

e Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System); is a multiple
employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system.

e Tier 2 Public Employees contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees System); is a
multiple employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 11 - STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

e The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1 2011. All eligible employees beginning on
or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah Retirement Systems, are
members of the Tier 2 Retirement System.

The Utah Retirement System (URS) is established and governed by the respective sections of Title 49 of the
Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. The URS’s defined benefit plans are amended statutorily by the State
Legislature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for the administration of the Systems
under the direction of the Board, whose members are appointed by the Governor. They URS are fiduciary funds
defined as pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds. URS is a component unit of the State of Utah.

Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms. URS issues a publicly
available financial report which can be obtained by writing Utah Retirement Systems, 560 E. 200 S, Salt Lake
City, Utah 84102 or visiting the website: www.urs.org

Benefits Provided — URS Provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Retirement benefits are as follows:
Final average Years of service required and/or  Benefit percent per year of
System salary age eligible for benefit service COLA*
Noncontributory System Highest 3 years 30 years any age 2.0% per year all years Up to 4%
25 years any age*
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65
Firefighters System Highest 3 years 20 years any age 2.5% peryeartoto 20 years;  Upto4%
10 years age 60 2.0% per year over 20 years
4 years age 65
Tier 2 Public Employees System Highest 5 years 35 years any age 1.5% per year all years Up to 2.5%
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter System Highest 5 years 25 years any age* 1.5% per year all years Up to 2.5%
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65

*with actuarial reductions

**all post-retirement cost of living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit except for Judges, which is a
compounding benefit. The cost-of-living adjustments are also limited to the actual Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the year, although unused
CPl increases not met may be carried forward to subsequent years.
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NOTE 11 - STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Contributions — As a condition of participation in the plans, employers and/or employees are required to
contribute certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statute and specified by the URS Board.
Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions
(where applicable) is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Contribution rates are as follows:

Employer
Paid by Employer Contribution Emplover rate for
Employes Paid for Emplovyes Rates 401(k) Plan

Contributory System

111 - Local Governmental Division Tier 2 N/A N/A 16.670% 1.780%
Noncontributory

15 - Loecal Governmental Division Tier 1 N/A N/A 18.470% N/A
Tier 20 DC Only

211 Local Government NA N/A 6.690% 10.000%

Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of the
Tier 1 plans.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the employer and employee contributions to the System were as
follows:

Emplovyer Employes
System Contributions Contributions
Noncontributory System 3 355432 N/A
Tier 2 Public Employee System 138.865 -
Tier 2 DC Only System 9.203 N/A
5 503,500 5

Contributions reported are the URS Board approved required contributions by the System. Contributions in the
Tier 2 Systems are used to finance the unfunded liabilities of the Tier 1 Systems.

Pension assets, liabilities, expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions — At June 30, 2017 the City reported a net pension assets of $0 and a net pension liability of
$1,617,287.

(Measurement Date): December 31, 2016

Net Pension Net Pension Proportionate Proportionate Share Change
Asget Liability Share December 31, 2015 (Decrease)
Noncontributory System $ - £ 1,606,251 0.2514720% 0.2882055% -0.0380583%
Tier 2 Public Employees System - 11,036 0.0989357% 0.0035549% 0.0035549%
Total Net Pension AssetLiability g - £ 1.606,251
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NOTE 11 - STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

The net pension asset and liability was measured as of December 31, 2016, and the total pension liability used
to calculate the net pension asset and liability were determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2016
and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures. The proportion of the net pension asset and
liability is equal to the ratio of the employer’s actual contributions to the System during the plan year over the

total of all employer contributions to the System during the plan year.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $525,535. At December 31, 2016, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension plans from the

following sources:

Deferred
Outflows of Deferred Inflows
Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 34,890 $ 52,865
Changes in assumptions 224,099 53,285
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on the pension plan investments 361,144 107,153
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate shares of contributions 7.953 278,491
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 252,927 -
Total $ 881,013 $ 491,794

The $252,927 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
made prior to the fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of December 31, 2016. These
contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal year. Other

amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be

recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended Deferred Outflows

December 31, (Inflows) of Resources
2016 30,108
2017 31.5300
2018 54.904
2019 (13.914)
2020 309
Thereafter 3.386
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NOTE 11 - STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Actuarial assumptions — The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016, actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.60 percent
Salary increases 3.35-10.35 percent, average, including mnflation
Investment rate of return 7.2 percent, net of pension plan investment

expenses, mcluding inflation

Active member mortality rates are a function of the member’s gender, occupation, and age and are developed
based upon plan experience. Retiree mortality assumptions are highlighted in the table below.

Retired Member Mortality

Class of Member

Educators

Men EDUM (90%)

Women EDUF (100%)

Public Safety and Firefighteers

Men RP 2000mWC (100%)

Women EDUF (120%)

Local Government, Public Employees

Men RP 2000mWC (100%)

Women EDUF (120%)

EDUM = Constructed mortality table based on actual experience of male educators mulfiplied by given pergentage
EDUF = Constructed mortality table based on actual expenience of female educators multiplied by given percentage
RP 2000mWC = RP 2000 Combined mortality table for males with white collar adjusiments multiplied by given percentage

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the five year period of January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2013.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:
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NOTE 11 - STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Expected Return Anithmetic Basis
Long-Term Expected
Target Asset Portfolio Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Real Return Anthmetic Basis Return

Equity securities 40% 7.06% 2.82%
Debt securities 20% 0.80% 0.16%
Real assets 13% 5.10% 0.66%
Private equity 9% 11.30% 1.02%
Absolute refurn 18% 3.15% 0.57%
Cash and cash equivalents 0% 0.00% 0.00%
Totals 100% 5.23%
Inflation 2.75%
Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.98%

The 7.20% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.60% and a real return of
4.60% that is net of investment expense.

Discount rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.20%. The projection

of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the
current contribution rate and that contributions from all participating employers will be made at contractually
required rates that are actuarially determined and certified by the URS Board. Based on those assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. The
discount rate does not use the Municipal Bond Index Rate. The discount rate was reduced to 7.20 percent from
7.50 percent from the prior measurement period.

Sensitivity of the City’s proportionate share of the net pension asset and liability to changes in the
discount rate — The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.20%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower

(6.20%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.20%) (7.20%) (8.20%)
Proportion Share of
Noncontributory Systems 5 3.327.091 $ 1,606,251 $ 170,305
Tier 2 Public Employees System 75.120 11.036 (37.715)
Total 5 3.402.211 5 1,617,287 $ 132,590
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NOTE 11 - STATE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued)

Pension plan fiduciary net position — Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is
available in the separately issued URS financial report.

Defined Contribution Savings Plans

The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems Board and are
generally supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Retirement Systems, but they may also
be used as a primary retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax advantaged retirement savings programs
authorized under sections 401(k) and 408 of the Internal Revenue Code. Detailed information regarding plan
provisions is available in the separately issued URS financial report.

Eagle Mountain City participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings plans with the Utah Retirement
Systems:

* 401(k) Plan

*  457(b) Plan

* Roth IRA plan

Employee and employer contributions to the Utah Retirement Defined Contribution Savings Plans for the fiscal
year ended June 30, were as follows:

2017 2016 2015

401(k) Plan

Employer Contributions 5§ 53.059 £ 39832 $ 34468

Emplovee Contributions 23,876 23.086 24432
457 Plan

Emplover Contributions 159 569 158,995 188,953

Emplovee Contributions 146,485 142.136 169 503
457 Plan

Emplover Contributions N/A N/A N/A

Emplovee Contributions 21,395 26,547 33.783

NOTE 12 — RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES
The City has restricted fund balances for unspent roads funds, special assessments, and impact fees.
NOTE 13 - LITIGATION

The City is a defendant in certain legal actions and pending actions or is in process for miscellaneous

claims. The ultimate liability that might result from the final resolution of the above matters is not presently
determinable. City management is of the opinion that the final outcome of the cases will not have an adverse
material affect on the City’s financial statements.
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NOTE 14 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City participates in the Utah Local Governments
Trust (a public entity risk pool). All claims are submitted to the Utah Local Governments Trust, which acts as a
commercial insurer. The Association is obligated to pay all claims covered by its plan. All claims are subject to
a $5,000 deductible. The deductible is accrued as a current liability when the claim is incurred. The Utah Local
Governments Trust covers claims up to $10,000,000. The City has not incurred a claim in excess of its coverage
for any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 15 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City has entered into agreements with various developers to donate infrastructure that will benefit future
development within the city. These developers will be repaid with the impact fees collected from those future
developments. Because of the fluctuations in the building market within the City and due to the uncertainty of
new developments actually being built, the amounts are not reflected as liabilities on the financial statements.
They will be recorded as expenses as the future impact fees are received. The amount of outstanding impact fee
reimbursement agreements as of the balance sheet date is $4,982,921.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In preparing these financial statements, the City has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or
disclosure through December 10, 2017, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 17 — PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The City received funds paid by developers as deposits for landscaping projects throughout the City. When the
projects are completed the funds are returned to the developer. During the 2017 fiscal year it was discovered the
$184,293 of these funds were incorrectly recorded as revenue on the financial statements in prior years. As a result
the beginning fund balance of the general fund and the governmental activities net position has been restated.

In May of 2014 the City issued Series 2013 water quality revenue bonds. The bond proceeds were received as
reimbursements were submitted. $300,000 of the bond proceeds were incorrectly recorded as revenue on the
financial statements in subsequent years. As a result the beginning net position of the business type activities have
been restated.
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REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Planning and zoning
Public works
Community development
Total expenditures

Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from asset disposals

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources

(uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - beginning

Restatement of fund balance

(see Note 17)
Fund balances - ending

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -

Actual Positive

Original Final Totals (Negative)
$ 5,200,000 § 5,200,000 § 5,694,480 $ 494,480
1,740,800 1,838,800 2,895,474 1,056,674
925,000 967,965 1,322,460 354,495
223,200 263,200 1,288,452 1,025,252
214,050 217,050 640,324 423,274
8,303,050 8,487,015 11,841,190 3,354,175
2,790,916 2,991,191 2,750,887 240,304
2,427,590 2,463,855 2,332,378 131,477
394,750 394,750 487,486 (92,736)
2,746,114 3,047,061 3,115,775 (68,714)
1,175,101 1,319,801 1,171,572 148,229
9,534,471 10,216,658 9,858,098 358,560
(1,231,421) (1,729,643) 1,983,092 3,712,735
1,231,421 1,331,421 91,023 (1,240,398)
- (206,508) (2,001,387) (1,794,879)
1,231,421 1,124,913 (1,910,364) (3,035,277)
- (604,730) 72,728 677,458
3,070,888 3,070,888 3,070,888 -
(184,293) (184,293) (184,293) -
$ 2,886,595 $§ 2,281,865 § 2,959,323 $ 677,458
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Detail
Budget to Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 5,200,000 $ 5,200,000 $ 5,694,480 $ 494,480
Licenses and permits 1,740,800 1,838,800 2,895,474 1,056,674
Intergovernmental 925,000 967,965 1,322,460 354,495
Charges for services 223,200 263,200 1,288,452 1,025,252
Miscellaneous 214,050 217,050 640,324 423,274
Total revenues 8,303,050 8,487,015 11,841,190 3,354,175
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government:
Legislative 40,795 40,795 35,268 5,527
Recorders 302,584 302,584 256,900 45,684
Attorney 75,000 100,000 116,751 (16,751)
Executive 537,032 569,307 606,883 (37,576)
Finance 391,194 391,194 375,897 15,297
Engineering 464,749 464,749 440,091 24,658
Human Resources 226,293 226,293 - 226,293
Information Technology 241,300 281,300 237,809 43,491
Miscellaneous - - - -
Public Information 189,208 289,208 227,869 61,339
Building Maintenance 322,761 325,761 453,419 (127,658)
Total general government 2,790,916 2,991,191 2,750,887 240,304
Public safety
Police 2,427,590 2,463,855 2,332,378 131,477
Planning and zoning 394,750 394,750 487,486 (92,736)
Public works - - - -
Streets and Roads 1,781,263 1,930,945 1,914,179 16,766
Parks 964,851 1,116,116 1,201,596 (85,480)
Total public works 2,746,114 3,047,061 3,115,775 (68,714)
Community development
Arts council - - - -
Youth committee 1,400 1,400 580 820
Recreation 276,808 316,808 317,220 (412)
Senior council 11,427 11,427 46,857 (35,430)
Special events 135,355 135,355 98,761 36,594
Building 417,360 515,360 407,292 108,068
Library 332,751 339,451 300,862 38,589
Total community development 1,175,101 1,319,801 1,171,572 148,229
Total expenditures 9,534,471 10,216,658 9,858,098 358,560
Excess (deficit) of revenues over (under)
expenditures (1,231,421) (1,729,643) 1,983,092 3,712,735
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from asset sales - - - -
Transfers in 1,231,421 1,331,421 91,023 (1,240,398)
Transfers out - (206,508) (2,001,387) (1,794,879)
Total other financing sources 1,231,421 1,124,913 (1,910,364) (3,035,277)
(uses)
Net change in fund balance - (604,730) 72,728 677,458
Fund balances - beginning 3,070,888 3,070,888 3,070,888 -
Restatement of net position (see Note 17) (184,293) (184,293) (184,293) -
Fund balances - ending $ 2,886,595 $ 2,281,865 $ 2,959,323 $ 677,458




EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE 1 - Changes in assumptions

The following actuarial assumptions changes were adopted January 1, 2016. The assumed investment return
assumption was decreased from 7.50% to 7.20% and the assumed inflation rate was decreased from 2.75%
to 2.60%. With the decrease in the assumed rate of inflation, both the payroll growth and wage inflation
assumptions were decreased by 0.15% from the prior year’s assumption.

NOTE 2 - Budgetary Information

Budgets for the general fund are adopted and presented on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles.

(The balance of this page intentionally left blank)
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, PROPRIETARY, AND
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual

Special Improvement District 2000-1
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Special assessments $ 366,648 $ 366,648 $ 56,978 $ (309,670)
Miscellaneous 1,500 1,500 4,870 3,370
Impact fees 300,000 300,000 579,249 279,249
Total revenues 668,148 668,148 641,097 (27,051)
EXPENDITURES
Debt service -
Principal 321,000 321,000 - 321,000
Interest and fees 232,148 232,148 - 232,148
General government 55,000 55,000 51,361 3,639
Public works 60,000 200,000 235,473 (35,473)
Total expenditures 668,148 808,148 286,834 521,314
Excess (deficit) of revenues over (under)
expenditures - (140,000) 354,263 494,263
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out (154,424) (154,424) - 154,424
Total other financing sources and uses (154,424) (154,424) - 154,424
Net change in fund balance (154,424) (294,424) 354,263 648,687
Fund balances - beginning 254,424 254,424 254,424 -
Fund balances - ending $ 100,000 $ (40,0000 $ 608,687 $§ 648,687
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
Special Assessment Area - 2014
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Special assessments $ 208,769 $ 212,769 $ 250,663 $ 37,894
Miscellaneous - - 2,654 2,654
Total revenues 208,769 212,769 253,317 40,548
EXPENDITURES
Public works - 4,000 20,000 (16,000)
Debt service -
Principal 95,000 95,000 180,000 (85,000)
Interest and fees 113,769 113,769 70,618 43,151
Total expenditures 208,769 212,769 270,618 (57,849)
Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - (17,301) (17,301)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond Proceeds - - - -
Total other financing sources - - - -
Net change in fund balance - - (17,301) (17,301)
Fund balances - beginning 297,199 297,199 297,199 -
Fund balances - ending $ 297,199 $ 297,199 $ 279,898 $ (17,301)




EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - $ - $ 13,823 $ 13,823
Miscellaneous - - 16,736 16,736
Total Revenues - - 30,559 30,559
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Capital outlay 1,862,800 6,691,075 4,444,671 2,246,404
Total expenditures 1,862,800 6,691,075 4,444,671 2,246,404
Excess (deficit) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (1,862,800) (6,691,075) (4,414,112) 2,276,963
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,771,012 6,599,287 6,431,710 (167,577)
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,771,012 6,599,287 6,431,710 (167,577)
Net change in fund balance (91,788) (91,788) 2,017,598 2,109,386
Fund balances - beginning 33 33 33 -

Fund balances - ending $ (91,755) $ (91,755) $ 2,017,631 $ 2,109,386
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
General Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Budgeted Amounts

Actual
Original Final Totals

Variance with
Final Budget -
Positive
(Negative)

REVENUES
Miscellaneous $ - $ - $

EXPENDITURES

Debt service
Principal - -
Interest and fees - -

Total expenditures - -

Excess (deficit) of revenues over
(under) expenditures - -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in - -

Total other financing sources (uses) - -

Net change in fund balance - -

Fund balances - beginning 339 339

339

Fund balances - ending $ 339 $ 339 $

339




EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
Special Improvement District 98-1
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Special assessments $ - $ - $ - $ -
Miscellaneous - - - -
Impact fees 200,000 225,000 453,859 228,859
Total revenues 200,000 225,000 453,859 228,859
EXPENDITURES
Public works 200,000 225,000 224,786 214
Debt service - - - -
Total expenditures 200,000 225,000 224,786 214
Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 229,073 229,073

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Net Change in Fund Balance - - 229,073 229,073
Fund balances - beginning 325,148 325,148 325,148 -
Fund balances - ending $ 325,148 $ 325,148 $ 554,221 $ 229,073
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
Special Improvement District 98-3
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Special assessments $ - $ - $ - $ -
Miscellaneous - - 17 17
Impact fees 62,000 75,000 107,143 32,143
Total revenues 62,000 75,000 107,160 32,160
EXPENDITURES
Public works 62,000 75,000 85,735 (10,735)
Total expenditures 62,000 75,000 85,735 (10,735)
Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 21,425 21,425
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Total other financing sources - - - -
Net change in fund balance - - 21,425 21,425
Fund balances - beginning 47,262 47,262 47,262 -
Fund balances - ending $ 47,262 $ 47,262 $ 68,687 $ 21,425




EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
Special Improvement District 97-1
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Special assessments $ - $ - $ - $ -
Miscellaneous - - 5 5
Impact fees 154,786 185,786 212,248 26,462
Total revenues 154,786 185,786 212,253 26,467
EXPENDITURES
Public works 154,786 185,786 169,818 15,968
Total expenditures 154,786 185,786 169,818 15,968
Excess (deficit) of revenues
over (under) expenditures - - 42,435 42,435
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources - - - -
Net change in fund balance - - 42,435 42,435
Fund balances - beginning 81,857 81,857 81,857 -
Fund balances - ending $ 81,857 $ 81,857 $ 124,292 $ 42,435
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
Storm Water Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 350,000 $ 350,000 $ 380,562 $ 30,562
Miscellaneous 500 500 2,257 1,757
Impact fees 66,500 66,500 216,779 150,279
Total revenues 417,000 417,000 599,598 182,598
EXPENDITURES
Public Works 545,090 545,090 525,994 19,096
Total expenditures 545,090 545,090 525,994 19,096
Excess (deficit) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (128,090) (128,090) 73,604 201,694
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers out - - (602) (602)
Total other financing sources - - (602) (602)
Net change in fund balance (128,090) (128,090) 73,002 201,092
Fund balances - beginning 510,439 510,439 510,439 -
Fund balances - ending $ 382349 § 382349 § 583441 $§ 201,092




EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
Parks Impact Fee
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Impact fees $ 510,000 $ 510,000 $ 866,803 $ 356,803
Total revenues 510,000 510,000 866,803 356,803
EXPENDITURES
Public works 75,000 110,000 61,028 48,972
Total expenditures 75,000 110,000 61,028 48,972
Excess (deficit) of revenues over

(under) expenditures 435,000 400,000 805,775 405,775
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers Out (600,000) (1,800,000) (1,200,000) 600,000
Total other financing sources (600,000) (1,800,000) (1,200,000) 600,000
Net change in fund balance (165,000) (1,400,000) (394,225) 1,005,775
Fund balances - beginning 617,172 617,172 617,172 -
Fund balances - ending $ 452,172 S (782,828) $ 222947 $ 1,005,775
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REVENUES
Impact fees

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Public safety

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget to Actual
Public Safety Impact Fee
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Excess (deficit) of revenues over

(under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - beginning

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)

$ 21,500 $ 21,500 $ 24,394 $ 2,894

21,500 21,500 24,394 2,894

Total expenditures - - - -
21,500 21,500 24,394 2,894
Operating Transfers Out - (91,000) (91,023) (23)
Total other financing sources - (91,000) (91,023) (23)
21,500 (69,500) (66,629) 2,871

66,629 66,629 66,629 -

88,129 $ 2,871) § - $ 2,871

Fund balances - ending $




EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
Transportation Impact Fee
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Miscellaneous $ 5 $ 5 $ 13 $ 8
Impact fees 525,500 525,500 848,129 322,629
Total revenues 525,505 525,505 848,142 322,637
EXPENDITURES
Public works 395,000 775,000 586,045 188,955
Total expenditures 395,000 775,000 586,045 188,955
Excess (deficit) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 130,505 (249.,495) 262,097 511,592
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in - - -
Operating transfers out (550,000) (550,000) (550,000) -
Total other financing sources (550,000) (550,000) (550,000) -
Net change in fund balance (419,495) (799.,495) (287,903) 511,592
Fund balances - beginning 578,047 578,047 578,047 -

Fund balances - ending $ 158,552 $ (221,448) § 290,144 $ 511,592
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
Cemetery Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Original Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 33,000 33,000 $ 17,645 $ (15,355)
Intergovernmental - - - -
Impact fees - - - -
Total revenues 33,000 33,000 17,645 (15,355)
EXPENDITURES
Community Development 37,884 37,884 22,475 15,409
Total expenditures 37,884 37,884 22,475 15,409
Excess (deficit) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (4,884) (4,884) (4,830) 54
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) -
Operating Transfers In - 5,000 5,000
Total other financing sources - - 5,000 5,000
Net change in fund balance (4,884) (4,884) 170 5,054
Fund balances - beginning 292 292 292 -
Fund balances - ending $ (4,592) (4,592) % 462 $ 5,054




EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget to Actual
Redevelopment Agency
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Actual Positive
Final Totals (Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 42,225 40,335 $ (1,890)
Intergovernmental - - -
Impact fees - - -
Total revenues 42,225 40,335 (1,890)
EXPENDITURES
Community Development 42,225 23,741 18,484
Total expenditures 42,225 23,741 18,484
Excess (deficit) of revenues over
(under) expenditures - 16,594 16,594
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating Transfers In - - -
Total other financing sources - - -
Net change in fund balance - 16,594 16,594
Fund balances - beginning - - -
Fund balances - ending $ - 16,594 $ 16,594
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Net Position
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2017
Business
Garbage Incubator Golf Course Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 539,317 $ 83,351 $ 53,611 $ 676,279
Accounts receivable - net 163,916 512 - 164,428
Total current assets 703,233 83,863 53,611 840,707

Noncurrent assets:
Note Receivable -(net of current portion) - - 702,908 702,908
Net pension asset - - - -
Land, equipment, buildings and improvements - - - -
Less: Accumulated depreciation - - - -

Total noncurrent assets - - 702,908 702,908

Total assets 703,233 83,863 756,519 1,543,615

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related costs - 5,506 - 5,506

Total deferred outflow of resources - 5,506 - 5,506

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 116,570 2,232 - 118,802
Due to other funds - - - -
Total current liabilities 116,570 2,232 - 118,802

Noncurrent liabilities:

Deposits - - - -
Compensated absences - - - -
Net penson liability - 10,108 - 10,108
Bonds payable - - - -
Total noncurrent liabilities - 10,108 - 10,108
Total liabilities 116,570 12,340 - 128,910

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related costs - 3,074 - 3,074

Total deferred outflow of resources - 3,074 - 3,074

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets - - - -
Unrestricted 586,663 73,955 756,519 1,417,137

Total net Position $ 586,663 $ 73,955 $ 756,519 $§ 1,417,137
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Business
Garbage Incubator Golf Course Total
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 1,276,313 § 3,648 $ - $ 1,279,961
Other operating revenue - 4,822 - 4,822
Total operating revenues 1,276,313 8,470 - 1,284,783
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 934 78,121 - 79,055
Purchased services 1,118,407 60,254 - 1,178,661
Materials and supplies 42,669 - - 42,669
Depreciation and amortization - - - -
Miscellaneous 13,518 - - 13,518
Total operating expenses 1,175,528 138,375 - 1,313,903
Operating income 100,785 (129,905) - (29,120)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Other Income - - - -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) - - - -
Net income (loss) before contributions
and transfers 100,785 (129,905) - (29,120)
Contributions and transfers
Contributions - - - -
Operating transfers in - 72,000 152,908 224,908
Operating transfers out - - (464,157) (464,157)
Total contributions and transfers - 72,000 (311,249) (239,249)
Change in net Position 100,785 (57,905) (311,249) (268,369)
Total net position - beginning 485,878 131,860 1,067,768 1,685,506

Total net position - ending $ 586,663 $§ 73,955 $ 756,519 $ 1,417,137
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Business
Garbage Incubator Golf Course Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 1,279,123 $ 10,563 $ - $ 1,289,686
Payments to employees (934) (81,973) - (82,907)
Payments to suppliers (1,145,898) (58,981) - (1,204,879)
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities 132,291 (130,391) - 1,900
Cash Flows From Noncapital
Financing Activities
Transfers In - 72,000 - 72,000
Transfers Out - - - -
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital - 72,000 - 72,000
financing activities
Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities - - - -
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Net cash provided (used) by investing
and related financing activities - - - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 132,291 (58,391) - 73,900
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 407,026 141,742 53,611 602,379
Cash and cash equivalents (deficit) - end $ 539317 $ 83,351 $ 53,611 $ 676,279
Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating
activities:
Operating income $ 100,785 $ (129,905 $ - 8 (29,120)
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided (used) by
Depreciation expense - - - -
(Inc.)/decrease in accounts rec. 2,810 2,093 - 4,903
(Inc.)/decrease in due from other funds - - - -
(Inc.)/decrease in due from net pension asset - 2 - 2
(Inc.)/decrease in deferred outflows - 2,176 - 2,176
Increase/(decr.) in net pension liabilitiy - (5,481) - (5,481)
Increase/(decr.) in deferred inflows - (549) - (549)
Increase/(decr.) in accounts payable 28,696 1,273 - 29,969
Increase/(decr.) in due to other funds - - - -
Total adjustments 31,506 (486) - 31,020
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities $ 132,291 $ (130,391) $ - $ 1,900




EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Net Position
Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2017
Fleet Utility Billing GIS Services Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 247,667 104,770 $ 45,513 397,950
Accounts receivable - net - - - -
Receivable from Sale of Telecom Assets - - - -
Due from other funds - - - -
Total current assets 247,667 104,770 45,513 397,950
Noncurrent assets:
Net pension asset - - - -
Land, equipment, buildings and improvements 2,075,242 13,996 34,581 2,123,819
Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,293,618) (6,065) (19,019) (1,318,702)
Deferred bond financing costs - net - - - -
Total noncurrent assets 781,624 7,931 15,562 805,117
Total assets 1,029,291 112,701 61,075 1,203,067
DEFERRED OUT FLOW OF RESOURCES
Pension related costs - 16,943 8,471 25,414
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 34,360 2,269 1,670 38,299
Debt interest payable 909 - - 909
Current portion of long-term debt 113,056 - - 113,056
Total current liabilities 148,325 2,269 1,670 152,264
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deposits - - - -
Compensated absences - 4,465 841 5,306
Net pension liability - 31,102 15,551 46,653
Bonds payable - net of current portion - - - -
Total noncurrent liabilities - 35,567 16,392 51,959
Total liabilities 148,325 37,836 18,062 204,223
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related costs - 9,458 4,729 14,187
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 668,568 7,931 15,562 692,061
Unrestricted 212,398 74,419 31,193 318,010
Total net Position $ 880,966 $ 82,350 $ 46,755 1,010,071
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Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages
Purchased services
Materials and supplies
Depreciation and amortization
Miscellaneous
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Other Income

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Net income (loss) before contributions
and transfers

Contributions and transfers
Contributions
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total contributions and transfers

Change in net Position

Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Business
Garbage Incubator Golf Course Total
$ 1,276,313 $ 3,648 $ - 1,279,961
- 4,822 - 4,822
1,276,313 8,470 - 1,284,783
934 78,121 - 79,055
1,118,407 60,254 - 1,178,661
42,669 - - 42,669
13,518 - - 13,518
1,175,528 138,375 - 1,313,903
100,785 (129,905) - (29,120)
100,785 (129,905) - (29,120)
- 72,000 152,908 224,908
- - (464,157) (464,157)
- 72,000 (311,249) (239,249)
100,785 (57,905) (311,249) (268,369)
485,878 131,860 1,067,768 1,685,506
$ 586,663 $ 73,955 $ 756,519 1,417,137




EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Fleet Utility Billing  GIS Services Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 537,257 $ 207,159 122,021 866,437
Payments to employees - (137,758) (82,775) (220,533)
Payments to suppliers (220,937) (62,463) (28,190) (311,590)
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities 316,320 6,938 11,056 334,314
Cash Flows From Noncapital
Financing Activities
Transfers In - - - -
Transfers Out - - - -
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital - - - -
financing activities
Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Proceeds from the sale of assets 49,116 - - 49,116
Acquistion of capital assets (420,058) - - (420,058)
Principal paid on outstanding debt (110,916) - - (110,916)
Interest paid on outstanding debt (4,323) - - (4,323)
Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities (486,181) - - (486,181)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Net cash provided (used) by investing
and related financing activities - - - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents (169,861) 6,938 11,056 (151,867)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 417,528 97,832 34,457 549,817
Cash and cash equivalents (deficit) - end $ 247,667 $ 104,770 45,513 397,950
Reconciliation of operating income to
net cash provided (used) by operating
activities:
Operating income $ 17,075 $ 88 10,675 27,838
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided (used) by
Depreciation expense 273,623 2,800 6,916 283,339
(Inc.)/decrease in accounts rec. - - - -
(Inc.)/decrease in due from other funds - - - -
(Inc.)/decrease in due from net pension asset - 3 3 6
(Inc.)/decrease in deferred outflows - (5,125) 3,347 (1,778)
Increase/(decr.) in accounts payable 25,622 (3,437) (860) 21,325
Increase/(decr.) in net pension liabilitiy - 7,120 (8,431) (1,311)
Increase/(decr.) in deferred inflows - 3,885 (844) 3,041
Increase/(decr.) in compensated absences - 1,604 250 1,854
Total adjustments 299,245 6,850 381 306,476
Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities $ 316,320 $ 6,938 11,056 334,314




92

(This page intentionally left blank)



STATISTICAL SECTION

93



3920 PAE[RY JO 1PN«
A1) ureyunojA 9ey :991n0g

uonisod jou juoururorod Arewrd [ejo,
PpojoLIsaIuN)
PaIoLNSAY
«S10sse [eyrdes ur pojsaAu]
JUSWIUIIAOS ArewLid

uonisod jou sanranoe adA)-ssouisnq [ejo],
pajoLISaIUN)
PaloISaY
«S19sse [e3ideo ur paysoAu]
soniAnoe odA)-ssoursng

SOIIAT}OR [BJUSWIUIOAOS [B10,
pajoIsaIuN)
pajoLSOy
«S108se Te31des ur pajsoau]
SOI}IAIIOR [EJUOUILIOAOD)

666L90ST § BIETISIEL S €8LHTCOCI S TITECI0I $ 60TTHG'66 S 6VPOV6'EOL S 9LOPOIIOI S LBLOLOIOL S 96ETIS06 § 0T 86606
OPELSEST  919LLOEC  1299809C  ¥C6FI0EC  1€00SE61  LEC8CLOT 860 11STC  S6SCC8CC  0SLE8S6l  OLTII9CC
989°6€T'S 988'7€9"Y SSLITET  98LUISE'S ELTLERT  PILII9T EP0PY1'T €61°6VE'T LYI'S90Y  9SKOLI'6
€L6°090°0CT 998°660 %01 LLE9TIST6 7559708 S06‘VLL'LL 8776508 SES6PYIL 666°868°SL 667°€98°99 PISTIT6S
0SLS9LS9  Tt9'0068S _ €LL00KSS  OIpecesy  €6S819FF  6CI'SESOr 195 1p8py  Le0L90Fy  C890L98E 106 COSLE
088°90v'8T  LL9006L1  66CC6E61  TILECIEl  L6TOIICI  060786CI  OIL6SPEl  LEITOETl  69E1666 LOS'LLY 01
9ST1TETY 108°266T  TS6%6€T' PI8TILT  L8L9TET 8TI'VLO'C 61E6Th'1 €56°€8T'1 ISSP9ST  THT'E8I9
P69'9TT'Ey  PYILO0BE  TIE'LILTE  OSYLSK'TE  60S'SLIOE  LI6OLYIE  9TSTS6'6T  LYEOSYIE  TOLWIIOT  TSEIPY'0T
697688 OVLTI6CL ___609hT899 _ 9v866V'8S _ OI9€CESS  OCEPOPLS _ SIT'€9T9S  0SLE00LS _ PILIPIS __ 6IES6YES
0950569 6£69L1'S 12€769°9 TI8T68°6 VELEITL LYISPLL TBETS06 8SVOZSTI  I8£C656 €OV 8EI I
0£5°201°T $80°Th9'1 £€8°180°1 796'899 985°01¢ 9£9°TPS YTLYIL 0¥T'S90°1 9650051 p61°L86°C
6LTVERIL $ TTLTO0'99 $ SSP'8PO'6S S TLO'GEG'LY § 96£%66SLy § LESBII'GY $ 600°L6v'Oy § TSOBIVYY § LEL'BYLOY § T99°69S'8E
L10T 10C S10¢ 10C €10¢ 10¢ 10T 10¢ 600C 800¢
J83 X [eds1
(Surzunoooe Jo SIseq [eNnIooe)
SIBOX [BOSI] UQJ ISe]
juouoduwo)) Aq uonIsod 1N
ALID NIVINNONW A'TOVH
(spuny asrrdidud 10 Arejorrdord) sanianoe adA)-ssouisng Se [[oMm St SNIAIIOR [BJUSWUIIA0S 10J
J0q ‘SI1BdA U} JSB[ Y} JOAO AJ1D) A} UI SPUI) [RIOUBUY MOUS 110daI SIY) JO UONIAS [BINSHRIS A JO 66-16 SATed

SANHAL TVIONVNIA

94



SOETISLE  TISLTS6C  SOIPYO'6E  9SO°IH6°bE  OVI‘SES'LT  8TLSTE6T  850°896°ST  6S67TTISE  9L8°680°€C  LLY'SLS'LT
6L V0S61  OFEH06F1 S0E06SYT  0LS'TS6'VT 1806960  vISH6S0T  081°€65°81 €89°1S0°ST  TSO'86TLL  96TTLI8I
S0T0ST9 98L1EY'E SP Ity 867816 €6S°1€C POE 181 LTO'6TL 6TTL6E9 016°€L6 0SO°TLET
- - - - - - - 000059 - -
68SVST'EL  PSSTLYIT 09V ILI0T  TLTYOO'YT — S8P'LEL'OT  OITEIT6I ESTVO8°LT  $SH'P00'8T  THIWPTEIL  9VT10€'LI
115°L0€°81 ILT°€T9'YT  008°€SHPI 988866 650°995°9 PITTEL'S 8L8VLE L 9LTILSOT  +T8I6L'S 181°€06°8
866 V8 €I €09°100°01 150°598°01 181°€LY9 T60°THL T 899°69¢" 699°910°¢ 696°SHS9 9Z0°T10°1 129°112°C
6Tr'vC SETTS [aaadl 65€°6C 98¢°8¢€1 ¥10°861 020°Tht 089°61¢ ¥06°88¢ 9€5°6€€
#80°868°t €€€°69S LOE'YLS'E 9¥6°S8Y°¢ 185°689‘t TES LIy 681°916°¢ LT9'SOL'E 768° 1677 ¥20°TSE9
806°LTY' YT 6L9°S80°€T  vEI06VHE  €TS'ESITE  PISTOOPE  SOL'0I6°0€  168°TT96T  €907TIL8T  SHS'TET'LT  88LE0T'6T
S96'759°6 LOL'ETE'6 86E IV 1T 169°GITIT  +€E890°TC  TLI'BTE6L  9S9'SIS'LI  vLYCOV'LI 1LT°0€6°S1 81T00L'LI
S6Y0IET 0v0'8Y1°T S68°1€0°1 S9Y 190°1 168°L10°€ SYTTOT'1 £60°658 9£9°689 887°09 0S9°019
- - - - - - 65Y°L8T YT YhY - -
1€L°19 690°6L [LETSY'E SST1201Y I7€v6r'e 11L°68L°E 1TY8€S°E 886°8S°¢ L8SLT0Y ¥85°06T°t
SET19 €81°66 86T €86 9EY SET01 1876186 7798098 TTSI8Y'L 80T°TSY°L $86°106°9 8SL°69¢°L
690v00‘t ¥S6°€T6°€ 165°015°€ 0vE‘668°C 9€5P10°C 160°LS6°T €0T68LC Y6v TEET YOr°0r1°T WILETT
SEVLITY 19%°LLOY €YT685°€ S6TLIOE STITE9T €0S°0LLT 856°799°C ¥90°9€L°T LYL'61TT ¥80°T61°C
SPOTLLYT  TLO'TOL'El  9ELTLOET  TEYLE6'0L  08I4T9°TI €€5T8S 11 SETHOSTT  68€°8SETT  +LTTOSTT  0LS'E0S‘TI
L6589 LOL99T L9L 091 0ST'€hT £66°80€ 16C°9LY 009°L¥S 6V€°96S LS1°TH9 SE8Y06
¥S1°80S €L9°08¢ TISS6¢ 11€°Lee L8TLSE LYLLTY YLL'TLT 0L£°98C SEOTIE €8€°¢5¢E
9ILI8T'1 PP LI 6S¥°9L8 669°9€0°1 S08°08C°1 0SS‘810°T 68T 1 6LL'86T‘1 STH'9s8 £99°L88
01¥°90S°L SLY961°9 996°0€L°9 101916t SELELO'E 8TSEIT'E STOYITE 870°T68°C 690°800°¢ L68°69¢°¢
8LETEET 81+°987°C 818°TSET S0T°€80°C £P6°185°¢ 990°€6T°€ 196°69¢°¢ €PS8LIE 199'%2C°€ 06£°865°C
889°CL0E § 9STLST'E $ HITSSS'T $ 99TIELT $ LIFITI'E § ISEESI'E § €80°066C $ 0TE90I'E $ L686ST'E $ Thbeees §
LT10¢ 910C ST0C $10¢C 10T TIot T10C 010C 600¢ 800C

IBIX [BISIY

(Surzunoooe Jo SIseq [enIooe)
SIBOA [BOSI] U] ISe]
uonIsod N Ul saguey)

ALID NIVINNONW A'TOVH

sonuaAal werdoxd eyuowurosod Arewnd [ejo,

sonuoAal weidoid senianoe odA)-ssauisng [e)0],
suonnqLiuod pue syuesd [eyde)
suonnquyuod pue syueid Sunerado
ISOIAIIS 10J $aZIRYD)

:saniAnoe adAy-ssoursng

sonuoAal sweiSord SenIAIO. [BIUSWUISAOS [810
suormnqLiuod pue syueid reyde)
suonnqLyuod pue syueId sunerado
:SOOIAIS 10 SaT1eY)

SOIIAI)OR [BIUSUILIOAOD)

SANUIAY Wea3oag

sasuadxo juawuiono3 Arewtid [ejo ]
asuadxa sanianoe odAj-ssoursng (8101,
ssoursng Jofej\ UON
9sIn0)) 10D
Lon sen
Annn omodrg
Annn 1omoeg
Ainn 101e
saniAnoe adAy-ssoursng

9suadxa SANIAIOR [BIUSWILIIACS [€)0 ]
1Q9p WId}-3UO0] UO ISeI)U]
Suruueq
yuswdojoasp Ayrunwwuo))
sytom o1jqnd 29 sAemysiyg
Kyoyes oriqng
JUSUWIUIOAOS [BIOUSN)

ISONIAI}OR JUSUIUIOAOD)

sasuadxyq

95



ojeredos payzodar oq jou

PINOYS PUE SONIAIOR Y} UI PISPNOUT dIB SPUNJ ADTAISS [RUIUI ) J0J sjusunysnipy ‘g
9jeredos pajrodar 2q jou pinoys pue sanIAnoL oY) Jo Jed are suonnquuo)) [ende) |
'spunj as1IdIAUD 0} SANIANOE PUN IDIAISS [BUIAIUI JO SUOHEPI[OSUOD ) 103[JA1 0} JUSUNSNIPY 4

K10 urejunojy 9[Seq :00IMo0g

€26°62€°61 § €SL'SKI'S $ 9LPSIFOI § 16¥'LF98 $ LIEOTI'L § (€29°9€L'T) § 9vL'€0I'T $ 16€8SS0I $§ (HT8°S8Y) $ juouruIoAos Arewnid [ejo ],
801°691°L SLE9RIT 1S8°6S1°¢ 8L8°9€L°¢ (€£57°660°1) WE99T 1 SSE96€°S 18L°L9€E°1 sonianoe odA)-ssoursng
SISHIITI 101°2€T'8 0¥9°L0S°S 68Y°6LE'E (0LE°LEYT) YOv'LE] 9€0°T91°S (509°€58°1) SONIAIOE [BJUSWUIOAOD)
uonisod N ur wwﬁa:U
(17L'¥89°7) SLE9SIT (950°7€) 0 LTT'8TY 06L°C (¥S9°157°0) - sanIAROE adA)-ssoursng IO [EI0L
(12L%89°7) (615°s61) (950°€) - - (92L902°0) - SIOJSUBL],
(811°C58°¢) - - - - - spun, A1) WO SJOSSE JO UOHNGLIUOD)
TI07ET9 - - LTTRTY 06L°T (826°t1) - sjosse [eyded Jo uonisodsip uo (ssof) uren
1SINIADE ad, J-ssauisng Y10
L¥T0£9°8 101°7€C°8 9LS°STI'Y SEY°BTEY ¥TST66°E £€6°689°¢ 671°6vL°S S#8°969°¢ SOLIALOR [BIUSWILIOACD) 810 ],
1TL'Y89°C 615561 950°C€E 9TL90TT - SIOJSUBI],
(881°L60) - - - - - sjosse [ejdes Jo o[es uo (ssof) uren
ST —,wa.m - - - - - spunq \ﬁ:ED w0y sjasse Jo uonnqriuon)
850°70C 65S°€r S10°ST 05592 TTL'8E 98+°79 09t°9$ €LE°T0T SUILLIED JS010)U]
- - - - - - 698°TC1 YO
69SvTT'1 L8TOLS 12¥°L69 L¥8°698 009078 €VL°0LY 6€€°€LY 61€°€18 X} SIYOURIL]
608°6£1°C TEI'SLY'T LIE9YTT €61°€S0°T TI9'816°T 11+°608°T 0b1°89L°T 786°789°1 XE} 3N 7 SA[ES [eIOUD)
060°LLET ¥L9°680°1 LILYTI‘T SP6°8LE T 06SP61°1 €6T°EH6 Y8Y Y01 70€°5€8 soxe) Ajedoig
SoXe ],
wvm«m.\rmau.w —~3:0-.::.—0>°U
Eoﬁﬁwom uoz Ew m@MC&LO Hoauo —u:m wmzﬁo\/om —muoﬁuo
L6EP8EE] 0L6°€SS'Y €ES°L8LT (PLELSTL)  (LL6P8ST) (£€8°459°€) $68°098°9 (699°TH1b) asuadxo Jou JUOWIUISA0S ATewLiq [B)OL
6T8°6Y8°6 906°1L1°E 6L89ELE (€5T°660°1) TWE99T1 VTS YLL 800°8%9°L I8L°L9€°1 soniAnoe odA)-ssoursng
89S°bES’E  $ $90°28€ T $ (OpE'ere)  § (1T1°850°9) § (61€°1s8T) $ (Lse'6tyy) § (€11°48L)  § (0SHOISS) $ SANIANOR [RIUIWIUIOAOD)
ANUIAIY/(AsuddXT) JON
10t S10C $10C €10¢ [0 T10C 010C 600

18X [BISIY

(Surzunoooe Jo SIseq [enIooe)
SIBOA [BOSI] U] ISe]

("1u09) uonISOd 19N Ul saguey)
ALID NIVINAOW A'TOVH

96



€PELILYS 6T8'BLLTS TIO006TS 6STTILES T100°€06C § 9TESLLT $ 908°00L°C § $78980°C § 176T80F § LOSTOV'ST $
T89ILET 808°1SS°1 PES P QIYLLOE
897°¢8S 88T°0CI‘1 F1T%L0)
9ZI°16T°1 8IS°6L9°1 089°LEY°T 199°€0L°6
9T6°€0ET  £90°8TP Y01°596 €€9°€L0°T €I 198 9p1°86¥
LIF'€9PT  99L°0SET  806'FE6T  9T9°889°T  88SI+0°T 081°LLTT 0EL VST 01T'SEL 126°€LT1 8TY0T9°T
€TE656°T  888°0L0°C  9T8TII'T  6SYTO9T  T86°068°1 81€°00t ] LL8'F00°] 050°09€° 1 007°66L 907788’
€TE656°T  888°0L0°C  9T8TIIT  6SYTO9T  PISOLST TIE8LOT €88 bPL 0Z0°0€0°1 STLTLS 0v9°S1S°1
- $ - $ - $ - $ 89b°0C § 900TCE $ ¥66'65T $§ 0£0°0€E  $ SL99TT § 99L°99¢  $
T0C T0C S10¢C T0C €10¢C T10C T10C 010C 00C 300¢

183X [BISI

(Surzunoooe Jo SISeq [BNIdO. PAYIPOW)
SIBOA [BOSI] U] ISe]
Spun,{ [BJUSWILIAAOL) ‘SaduE[eq punyj

ALID NIVINNONW A'TOVH

Spunj [BJUSWIUIIAOS JOYJO [[& [8I0],
JolewruoN
spuny syoofoid rende)
Spun,{ anuoAdy [eroadg
ur payodar paugisseun)
paugissy
PaIoLISoy
spuny [BJUSUWILIIACD) 1Y [V

punj [e1ouad [e10],
paugisseun
pajoInsay
pun,] [eIoUsD)

97



(16¥°€29) 80L°90L (#S9°09%°1) (995°LL0°E)  ¥9€°88S (ovo'oes)  (@6I'TvL D) (PLITH9)  (LO6°0V9'Y)  (£48°656°t)
€48°6SS9T  SSOILTYI 9LV L6V TI 1YT€06°€T  906°L0L°01  $6T°€S6°01  €06°96¥°CI  STLOTOTT  OSIObb'€l  €TH0TTHI
1LY vhY'y TTSETTT  TSLY99°T 6S8°SLE 299711 6669LY 91Z°€9¢°T 06S°€TI0°T  079°€6S°E  TE1°0T9
819°0L 6LE081 YYLLLT ovt'9ce TLLEIE 78991 191°11¢ vLE6TS 0€8°StS €79°L06
- - - 98T°¢T1
000°081 000°L18°T  000°0t6 000°TS9°€  000°S8 000T60°T ~ 000°€EI°T 000°THE 000°06€ 68879t'¢
98%°L8Y 081°ST1Y 6£6°98¢ 00t°L1E 166°81¢€ v68°TEy 9LE0LT 6T1°ELT €9¥$0€ €€6°9P€
8LETEET 81+°98T°C  #10°L9E°C 6T6°S90°T  1SL'908°T  0TH9PT'E  9€€TIEE SEEOVIE  TIL'TII'E  SS6'118T
898°66L Y LE6088T  $89°9€T‘E 99T TIY'E  €THE98'T  €¥S6rT T 0S9TSHI ILY'L60°T  8IGCIET  6TES6LT
88L°LIT I 69067 T 9S9°901°1 S6S°LT0°1 1€6°99T°T  IS9°LEO'T  L99‘€TH'T S90°8ES‘ T TOLV68 1L¥°568
¥€0°LTO°E 0S8°TTT’E  L8YLIIT 99b°€0LT  9LL'60T'E  SOTTO0°S  L6¥°0€£0°C T9L°0L0°C  9¥80PT'E  TLOSLE'S
TSE9E6'ST  €9€°8L6'F1  TTR9E0TI SL9°GT80T 0LT96T 1T  $ST'ETHO1  TIL'SSL'OT  1SS'89€°01  €4T°S088  085°09T°6
98999 T€L°L9L 00L°€TE 086°0C1 9€8°8ST 1S6°8€T 18€°6¥S L9€°909 ¥99°LTS 869°TLOT
$09°80€°€ €19'YT0°T  8S0°€TST 9TT'S6Y' T 86S°LLY YLEVEY  TOL'TLE 68°1L6 16+°8ST LSS9TY
179°L0€ 6SY'TT6'T  8STTTY 6v1°L98 L6¥°86€ 089059 STsiees 8€L°LS9 LSY61Y €70°68S
659°989°1 €8¥°6€0°T  18T°SS8 T 1T1°C88T  1TS'8TH'E  L9L19€°€  168°1CTE ObP'€ES'T  16T°0SY'T  SLY'€60°T
€87°9¢€°T 849°8¥6 LLLTTS S9L'8LL P86°LYO'T  €L9SPIT  T6E0LYT 90L°ST0‘T  €1€°800°T  T9STIL
YL S68C ov6'P1T°C  880°T99°1 098°CSS'T  PLLPTI'T  9€S°S0L L9¥'T8S ¥8£°816 L1t°98L 0r9°TH6
SISHEL'S § 68Y°090°CS 099°8ErY § PLSSTI'VS 090°09CYS €LTE86'CS PSESTLE § L80°STIES 0199€CS SHI'LTY'E S
LT0C 9T0C ST0C $10C €10C T10C T10C 010C 600C 300C

JIe3 X [edSI]

(Surzunoooe Jo SISeq [BNIdO. PAYIPOW)
SIBOA [BOSI] U] ISe]
Spun,j [EIUSWUIIAOL) ‘SdouUR[eq pun, ul saguey)

ALID NIVINNONW A'TOVH

aIm1puadxa (Jopun) I9A0
SONUIAJI JO SSIOXT
sormipuadxoa [e10],
KepnQ 1ende)
so31ey)) [BoSI] pue 1saIu]
1500 9ouenss] puog
JuswaIney [edround
901A198 192
suonnqLIsI JUSWAIOU] X ],
SOJIAIRG "UIWIPY 29 d0URUIL]
Suruoz pue Suruueld
Kyegeg o1qng
SYI0M O1qnd
juawdo]aAdg Ayunuitio))
JUSWIUIDAOL) [BIQUSD)
uaLIny
saanyipuadxy

SINUAASY [BIOL
SNOJUB[[IISTIA]

$99J Joedw]

SIUOWISSISSE [e10adg
SIOIAISS 10] sa3IeyD)
[BIUSWULIDAOSIIU]

sywIad pue ‘sad) ‘sasuddI]
saxe]

SINUIAY

98



%81'C

%8591

%VT 11

%99'8C %9011 %07 1 YoLL'V1 %CL'8 %056

%S1°CE sormrpuadxo jeyideouou
Jo o8ejuoorod
© S 901AI0S 199

0€T'190°C $ 76898L $ (0SS10E D) $§ SEL0LS'T S #9€8I9 § (0¥0°0€S) $§ (TOHI'IHPL'D) $ TSSHIST $ (LO6°0¥9Y) $ (€¥8°6S6H)  $ sooue[eq
punj ur a5ueyo JON
12L'¥89°C ¥81°08 YLL'8ST 10€°8¥9° % 000°0€ 0 0 9TL90T°T 0 0 (sosn) sooInos
Suroueury I0Y)o [8J0 ],
T10°er8°e)  (1s9TeL' D) (FEP180°0) (079°879) (+85°809) (9T¥ 00%) (#0S°8LY) 012°0150)  (6+0°909°T)  (809°189°€) INO SIJSUBL],
€€LLTS9 S€8°C08°1 TE9VSIT 9L9°099 ¥85°809 9T¥ 00 70S‘8LY 9€691L Y 6%0°909°1 809°189°¢ ur I19Jsuer],
0000¢ suonnqLIuo)
SYT919'Y SPa9001J 199(]
(000°CIt) SoueIdWOOUON] JUBID) UO SSOT
915°L6Y s[esodsI(q 19SSy WO SPadd01]
SjuBLIEAM WILIIU]
1Qop wId) SUO| JO 9oUBNSS|
(s3s)) sddanog
Supueuly PYO
L10¢T 910¢C 10T ¥10¢T £10C Zioc 110C 010¢T 600C 800C

IBI X [eISI]

(Sununodoe Jo sIseq [eNIdOR PAYIPOW)
SIBOA [BOSI] U] ISe]
("3u09) Spun,{ [EBIUSWUIIAOL) ‘SFoUR[eq pun,j ur saguey))

ALID NIVINNONW A'TOVH

99



KLiado1g Joyi0-A1adoid [euosIag, YHM pauIquod uadq sey Aado1d [ELISNPU] PUB [RIDIOWWO)) (7

SOWOH 9[1qOJ Areunig-£110d01{ [BUOSIad, Upla PAUIqUIOd U2aq sey Auadoid [enuapisay (1

soyewirisa a1e SamSy €107
UOISSILIWIOY) Xe 3Je)S [el() :901n0§

50 8IETSIHOLT %I801°0 SLL'E8T'LEG TTWTLOSIT  €99°C1T1°9S 12071001 8¢8°071°1 006778 189°CH1°T€ 160°0%1°906 L10T
§5°0 T8T'99LILY'T %S8111°0 SSYITTTIS 86L°9€5°8PT  667°690°6¢ 6VF LY9P01 050786 008°6£8°¢ TLLT6ETT 89°878°06L 9107
§5°0 8¢H'L6T'86T'1 %6110 165°€90°t1L IS6ESTEIT  988°819°€E TIL'SILYL ESTLIO0T 00TTTL'E 9p8'6£5°61 SPLETS P69 $10C
§50 091°100°SL0°T %08€T°0 8€9°0ST°16S €8€°0SKTIT  1L9°676°€E £5€°969°5L 65T1°080°T 00TpLT PTLTTTST P16'LT0°9LS 102
§5°0 117°0SL°6LT T %8991°0 919°798°C0L POTPILTEL  T1L9°6T6°€CE LELTLI'Y6 9¢7'99¢°T 02€'967°C 897°065°L1 87€'7LT'989 €107
§5°0 TT786'866 %9¢91°0 T THH 6vS SOVTT8TIT  LOT'88E'SE  OLY'TLSEL 87SL90°T 000%6L'T LOSTHLEI 976'869°S€S 10t
§50 LOL'SOLITI'T %01$T0 6ET°88T°719 9TI'T8C'6y  15S°L88°TE  9ST0TSHI 619°620° 00876 6671€6'67  0V9°9ST'H8S 1102
§5°0 SEL'6TY'SSIT %00%1°0 PSE98y°5E9 LT6TELSY  9€8°C6E°TE L966L'ST 8LIYL e'108 0LT'9€ETE P8I1°TTI'E09 0102
§5°0 STHIETHETT %0€T1°0 P8T°LT8'8L9 €8Y'SPRIS  909°6EPTE PP P69°81 £90°%0L 007°L00°T 08L'659°8¢€ P0S*L9T 019 6007
§5°0 €69°T09°96E'T  § %E9TT°0 868°0C1°89L  § bSH8SIGY § €OKP6S8T § 070°006'8T  § TL5'959 00%°£00°T OPTIVEYT § TSO'68L'EHL 800C
anfeA a|qexe] anjeA a|qexe], ey Xe]  N[BA PISSasSy fadord  sonjep passassy  JUBJRA-VVA Vvi fixado1g (7) fadoig (1) &adoag Tea g
[emay Jo [eMOY PJRUWNST  JOAI( [BI0],  d[qexe] [el0L 1dwaxg A[renua) UON paoxduwrup) [eI[nOLISY [emmsnpuy [enuapisay [easty
95eIuR01a4 ® Se -Xe] :$897] pUe [RIDISWIO))
JN[BA PISSasSy
J[qexe],

SIBQA [BOSI UQJ Ise]
K1odoid o[qexe] Jo on[eA [enjoy PAJBWISH PUB ONJBA PISSISSY

ALID NIVINNONW A'TOVH

K1) o urim K11odoad 10J sanjeA a[qexe) o1e UMOYS OS] S99
pue soxe) woj A1) oy} 10J Ayoeded onuaAal oY) moys 310dar SIy) Jo uondaS [edNISHEIS Yl Jo L01-001 SoSed

ALIOVAdVD HANIAHTYH

100



City Direct Rates

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(rate per $1,000 of assessed value)

Overlapping Rates

Central Utah Salt Lake State Local
Total Water Alpine Valley Assessing  Assessing

Fiscal Basic Direct Utah Conservancy  School Fire & & Total Tax
Year Rates Rates County District District District Collecting Collecting Rate
2008 1.163 1.163 0.843 0.302 6.937 0.121 0.036 9.402
2009 1.230 1.230 0.809 0.286 7.057 0.121 0.175 9.678
2010 1.400 1.400 0.878 0.400 7.541 0.142 0.183 10.544
2011 1.510 1.510 1.108 0.421 8.220 0.162 0.024 11.445
2012 1.636 1.636 1.143 0.436 8.812 0.172 0.027 12.226
2013 1.668 1.668 1.127 0.455 8.828 0.168 0.029 12.275
2014 1.380 1.380 1.006 0.446 8.699 2.192 0.158 0.095 13.976
2015 1.192 1.192 0.916 0.422 8.096 2.097 0.013 0.220 12.956
2016 1.118 1.118 0.870 0.405 8.177 1.997 0.012 0.216 12.795
2017 1.081 1.081 0.834 0.400 7.718 1.884 0.011 0.204 12.132

Source: Utah County Treasurer
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Property Tax Levied and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Subsequent

Year Tax Levied Current Delinquent Total

Ended for the Fiscal Amount  Percentage Amount Collected to  Percentage

June 30, Year Collected of Levy Collected Date of Levy

2008 $ 807,757 $ 685,943 84.9% $ 121,814 $ 807,757 100.00%
2009 1,005,266 824,566 82.0% 180,700 1,005,266 100.00%
2010 1,022,944 865,717 84.6% 157,227 1,022,944 100.00%
2011 1,033,170 912,961 88.4% 119,773 1,032,734 99.96%
2012 1,082,688 990,018 91.4% 92,363 1,082,381 99.97%
2013 1,102,986 1,027,078 93.1% 75,594 1,102,672 99.97%
2014 972,744 910,201 93.6% 61,263 971,464 99.87%
2015 987,417 931,878 94.4% 53,731 985,610 99.82%
2016 1,074,593 1,014,350 94.4% 52,093 1,066,444 99.24%
2017 1,191,899 1,136,921 95.4% 41,987 1,178,908 98.91%

Source: Utah County Treasurer
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Eagle Mass Transit,

Fiscal Mountain City Highway and  State of
Year Direct Rate Utah County Airport Utah
2008 1.00% 0.25% 0.30% 4.65%
2009 1.00% 0.25% 0.55% 4.70%
2010 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2011 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2012 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2013 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2014 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2015 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2016 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%
2017 1.00% 0.25% 0.80% 4.70%

Source: Utah State Tax Commission
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Governmental Unit

Debt repaid with property taxes
Utah County

Alpine School District

Central Utah Water Cons. Dist.
Subtotal, overlapping debt

City direct debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

As of June 30, 2017

Estimated Estimated Share of

Percentage Direct and
Debt Outstanding Applicable Overlapping Debt
$ - 420% $ -
441,725,000 7.80% 34,454,550
661,689,000 0.93% 6,153,708
40,608,258
1,343,000

$ 41,951,258

Please Note: Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt includes bonds and other
debt from entities which appear on Eagle Mountain residents' property tax statements. These
debts are not Eagle Mountain City obligations directly but instead are obligations other taxing
entites have to which residents of Eagle Mountain are required to pay through property tax
assessments to those entities. The overlap percentage is calculated based on population and
value assessment statistics gathered by Utah County.
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DEMOGRAPHICS AND ECONOMICS
Pages 113-114 of the Statistical Section of this report show demographic and economic statistics for the City
over the last 10 years of the City’s history.

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Per Capita
Personal Unemployment
Calendar  Population Personal Income Income Rate*
2008 22,309 $ 271,043,036 $ 12,149 3.2
2009 23,000 292,965,933 12,738 5.2
2010 21,415 299,270,206 13,975 7.1
2011 22,008 297,656,898 13,525 7.5
2012 23,531 395,326,200 16,800 6.1
2013 24,097 355,865,378 14,768 4.6
2014 25,760 386,553,677 15,006 3.7
2015 27,027 440,705,329 16,306 3.2
2016 31,165 512,700,028 16,451 2.9
2017 32,980 570,420,663 17,296 29
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EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2017 2008%
Percentage of Percentage of
Total City Total City
Employer Employees Rank Employment = Employees Rank Employment
Alpine School District 482 1 41.80% N/A N/A
Eagle Mountain City 128 2 11.10% N/A N/A
Ridley's Family Market 114 3 9.89% N/A N/A
Job Match LLC 60 4 5.20% N/A N/A
Rockwell High School 50 5 4.34% N/A N/A
Ranches Academy 48 6 4.16% N/A N/A
Questar Gas 37 7 3.21% N/A N/A
The Ranches Golf Club 30 8 2.60% N/A N/A
TM Crushing LLC 27 9 2.34% N/A N/A
Maverik 23 10 1.99% N/A N/A
Revere Health 20 11 1.73% N/A N/A
Direct Communications 19 12 1.65% N/A N/A
Village Pizza 18 13 1.56% N/A N/A
Six Sisters Deli & Grille 18 13 1.56% N/A N/A
Subway 15 15 1.30% N/A N/A
Domino's Pizza 15 15 1.30% N/A N/A
Utah Addiction Centers, LLC 13 17 1.13% N/A N/A
Jiffy Lube 13 17 1.13% N/A N/A
Gotta Dance 12 19 1.04% N/A N/A
Holiday Oil 11 20 0.95% N/A N/A
Total City Employment 1,153 88.38% N/A N/A

Source: The City of Eagle Mountain
(1) Includes the top twenty employers according to total number of employees.

(2) The City did not collect employee information as part of business license or any other
process until 2009.

N/A = Not Available
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OPERATING INFORMATION
Pages 115-117 of the Statistical Section show operating statistics and performance measurement data for the
City’s overall performance over the last 10 years.

EAGLE MOUNTAIN CITY
Full-time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time-Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Function/Program
General government
Administration 8.6 6.6 8.6 11 8 7 5 5.5 4 541
Finance 4 4 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 3.6
Planning 5 4 3.5 2.5 3.5 2.83 4 4 4 4
Building 7 6 5.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 5.5 5.75 5 5.25
Recorder 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Facilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1.5 3 2.1
Public Information 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1.25 2 2.4
Human Resources 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1
Other 0 0 0 0 3.38 3 1.5 2.15 1.5 7.38
Police
Crossing Guards 3.5 3.5 32 32 32 32 4.75 5.25 5 4.52
Fire
Firefighters and offic  16.75 158 16.59 16.59 17 17 0 0 0 0
Parks and recreation 5 5 1 4.75 4.5 4.5 7.2 7.2 7.5 9.33
Library 2.3 2.2 2.3 2.3 4.13 4.13 5.15 5.5 6.33
Other public works
Management 3 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Engineering 2 2 2.3 2.6 2.66 2.66 4.96 5 5 4.33
Streets 4 4 3.5 3.25 3.5 35 4.5 4.5 7.5 6.01
Water 4 4 6 5.17 5.17 5.16 53 5.5 7 5.93
Wastewater 4 4 5.1 5.17 5.17 5.17 5.31 4 4.5 5.3
Utility Billing 4 4 4 3.75 4.75 5 5.5 4 3 3.5
Other 0 1 4 2 2 2 2.68 3.38 3 4.63
Energy 18 13 13 12 12 11 13 0 0 0
Total 94.15 86.1 8459 8378 88.46 85.65 8435 72.48 76  84.02
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GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS REPORT

UTAH STATE COMPLIANCE REPORT
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RANDEL A HEATON, CPA

GILBERT & STEWART

& JAMES A. GILBERT, CPA

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS RONAEgjg Tpgv?;g; g;ﬁ
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION _—
ESTABLISHED 1974 SIDNEY S. GILBERT, CPA

JAMES E. STEWART, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
Eagle Mountain City
Eagle Mountain, Utah

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Eagle Mountain City (the City), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 10, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Eagle Mountain City’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control which might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatements, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report in an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Gilbert & Stewart

GILBERT & STEWART, CPA PC
December 10, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Eagle Mountain City, Utah

Report On Compliance with General State Compliance Requirements

We have audited Eagle Mountain City’s (“the City”) compliance with the applicable general state compliance
requirements described in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah State Auditor, that
could have a direct and material effect on the City for the year ended June 30, 2017.

General state compliance requirements were tested for the year ended June 30, 2017 in the following areas:

Budgetary Compliance

Fund Balance

Utah Retirement Systems

Restricted Taxes and Related Revenues
Open and Public Meetings Act
Treasurer’s Bond

Enterprise Fund Transfers

Tax Levy Revenue Recognition

Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with the general state requirements referred to above.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit of the compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State
Compliance Audit Guide. Those standards and the State Compliance Audit Guide require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the City occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with general state
compliance requirements. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance.

Opinion on General State Compliance Requirements

In our opinion, Eagle Mountain City, complied, in all material respects, with the general compliance requirements
identified above for the year ended June 30, 2017.
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Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in
accordance with the State Audit Guide and which are described in a separate letter to management dated
December 10, 2017, as item 2017-1. Our opinion on compliance was not modified with respect to these matters.

The City’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in a separate letter to
management. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the compliance requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on the City to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance with general state compliance requirements and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a general state compliance requirement on a timely basis. A4
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a general
state compliance requirement will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a general state compliance requirement that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

We noted matters involving internal control over compliance which we are submitting for your consideration.
These matters are described in a separate letter to management as item 2017-1.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control and compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State Compliance
Audit Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Gilbert & Stewart

December 10, 2017
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